AGENDA

The Municipality of Regular Council meeting to be held
Powa « a n Tuesday November 17, 2020 at 7:00 p.m.
Fire Hall @252 Clark, Powassan

1. CALL TO ORDER

2, ROLLCALL
3. DISCLOSURE OF MONETARY INTEREST AND GENERAL NATURE THEREOF

4. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

5. _PRESENTATIONS

6. ADOPTION OF MINUTES
6.1 Regular Council meeting of November 3, 2020

7. MINUTES AND REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL

8. MINUTES AND REPORTS FROM APPOINTED BOARDS
8.1 District of Parry Sound Social Services Admin. Board CAQ Monthly Report for November

9. STAFF REPORTS

10. BY-LAWS
11. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

12. NEW BUSINESS
12.1 RFP Organizational Review —Results at meeting

13. CORRESPONDENCE
13.1 National Disaster Mitigation Program- Intake 6 NDMP
13.2 Inclusive Community Grants-Age-Friendly Communities
13.3 Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program (ICIP) COVID-19 Resilience- Infrastructure Stream

14. ADDENDUM

15. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

16, NOTICE OF SCHEDULE OF COUNCIL AND BOARD MEETINGS

17. PUBLIC QUESTIONS

18. CLOSED SESSION

18.1  Closed Session Minutes of November 3, 2020

18.2  Identifiable Individual-Section 239(2)(b) of the Municipal Act and under 6(1)(b) of the Procedural Bylaw-
Matters regarding identifiable individuals.

19, MOTION TO ADJOURN




The Municipality of

Powaszan

Council Meeting
Tuesday November 3, 2020, at 7:00 pm
Fire Hall, Powassan

Present: Peter Mclsaac, Mayor
Randy Hall, Deputy Mayor
Markus Wand, Councillor
Debbie Piekarski, Councillor
Absent with Regrets: Dave Britton, Councillor

Staff: Maureen Lang, CAO/Clerk-Treasurer
Terry Lang, IT, Kim Bester, Deputy Clerk

Presentations: None

Disclosure of Monetary Interest and General Nature Thereof: none

2020-336 Moved by: D. Piekarski Seconded by: R. Hall
That the agenda of the Regular Council meeting of November 3, 2020, be
approved with the addition of:

12.5 Emergency Management Carried
2020-337 Moved by: R. Hall Seconded by: D. Piekarski

That the minutes of the Regular Council meeting of October 20, 2020, be adopted. Carried
2020-338 Moved by: R.Hall Seconded by: M. Wand

That the minutes from the Golden Sunshine Municipal Non-Profit Housing Corporation

committee meeting 2020-06, be received. Carried
2020-339 Moved by: M.Wand Seconded by: R.Hall

That the minutes dated September 28, 2020 from the Powassan and District Union Public

Library Board, be received. Carried
2020-340 Moved by: M. Wand Seconded by: D. Piekarski

That the Draft minutes dated October 26, 2020 from the Powassan and District Union Public

Library Board, be received. Carried
2020-341 Moved by: D. Piekarski Seconded by: M.Wand

That Council accepts the transfer of lands identified as Pt Lt 1, Con 10 Himsworth, Pt 2
and 4, 42R21491, Powassan in fulfillment of the condition of the Consent File

B13/Powassan/2020. Carried
2020-342 Moved by: M.Wand Seconded by: R. Hall
That the Ontario Clean Water Agency (OCWA) Quarterly Operations Report for the Powassan
Water and Wastewater systems, be received. Carried

%TUEN%':L HTG. MJIU ¥ g l 0

&




2020-343

2020-344

2020-345

2020-346

2020-347

2020-348

2020-349

2020-350

Moved by: R.Hall Seconded by: D. Piekarski
That Mayor Peter Mclsaac and CAQ/Clerk-Treasurer Maureen Lang be the signing authority
for the Agreement “COVID-19 Technology Adoption Fund” awarded through the Blue Sky
Economic Growth Corporation for $10,000 max in funding, Carried

Moved by: D. Piekarski Seconded by: M. Wand
The the correspondence from the Ontario Clean Water Agency regarding proposed Major
Maintenance Recommendations for 2021 and 2022, be received. Carried

Moved by: M.Wand Seconded by: D. Piekarski
That the correspondence from AMO regarding the transition schedule for the Blue Box
Program to the new Full Producer Responsibility regulation, be received. Carried

Moved by: R. Hall Seconded by: M. Wand
That the correspondence from the Ministry of Finance regarding the 2021 Ontario Municipal
Partnership Fund (OMPF) allocations, be received. Carried

Moved by: D. Piekarski Seconded by: R. Hall
That the accounts payable listing reports dated October 20 & 29, 2020, in the
total amount of $246,058.47, be approved for payment. Carried

Moved by: R. Hall Seconded by: D. Piekarski
That Council now adjourns to closed session at 7:29pm to discuss:

18.1 Adoption of Closed Session minutes of October 20, 2020.

18.2 Legal Advice-Section 239(2)f) of the Municipal Act and under 6(1)Xf) of the Procedural
Bylaw-Advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including communications necessary

for that purpose. Carried
Moved by: R. Hall Seconded by: M. Wand
That Council now reconvenes to regular session at 8:13 pm. Carried

Moved by: D. Piekarskie Seconded by: R. Hall
That Council now adjourns at 8:13 pm. Carried

Mayor ' CAO/Clerk-Treasurer



District of Parry Sound

Social Services
Administration Board

Chief Administrative Officer

Monthly Report

November 2020

Mission Statement

“We are committed to the provision and
promotion of services that assist
individuals in attaining an optimum quality of life and
that contribute to the well-being of the community.”

DATE OF

couermre | Mo, |/ 7/90

P | 9




ADMINISTRATION - Tammy MacKenzie, CAQ

Is winter here? Depends on the day. As | write this report, snow is coming down at a feverish pace but
what | am holding onto is the weather forecast that is calling for double digits in the next week. Time will

tell | guess.

What is becoming more predictable is the increase in COVID-19 positive cases in the province. Our district
has been holding fast and preparing for a “2nd wave” that may hit. | participate in weekly teleconferences
with the West Parry Sound Health Centre and community partners to discuss any and all measures that
are in place or ones we may institute to “shore up” our community. At our PSDSSAB offices, childcare lo-
cations, women'’s shelter and housing units we have not “let down our guard”. In fact, we are more delib-
erate than ever with our active screening, mask wearing, hand washing etc. and encouraging staff to work
from home whenever possible. We facilitate meetings via teleconference or video with physically dis-
tanced in-person meetings only for teams that are working together daily due to the nature of their work. |
am confident that as a staffing team we will be able to pull through together and provide the much need-

ed support to our clients during this challenging time.

In keeping with COVID-19 information, we have distributed our first round of the Social Services Relief
Fund. This $860,400 round of funding provided much needed financial support towards community re-
sponses and the immediate needs of individual clients. | am also pleased to share that we were success-
ful in securing a second round of funding totaling $876,208. | will provide a more detailed report of both

rounds of funding at our December Board meeting.

In developing our budgets this year, it came to my attention our childcare fees have not been increased in
approximately 10 years despite our operating costs increasing year over year. To keep with our commit-
ment to offer the highest quality programming we have made the decision to increase our fees to reflect
our increasing costs. This fee increase will help maintain program viability and will cover the increased
costs of food, staffing, and maintenance of the programs. Our centre-based and home child care fees will
increase $2 a day for all services except before and after schoo! programs which will increase by $1 a
day. We will be increasing home care provider rates by $1 a day to provide a more competitive amount to
assist with recruitment and retention. Parents began receiving notification of the increases the week of

November 4t so they are prepared for the increases to begin January 4th, 2021.

| am pleased to share that we have launched our staff flu shot campaign. All staff will be provided their fiu
shot at their place of work during work hours if they so choose. This has been made possible by the gen-
erosity of Jessica Sawyer, Pharmacist Owner of Shoppers Drug Mart in Parry Sound and Parry Sound Dis-
trict EMS Paramedicine staff. We are very pleased with the number of staff participating and are hoping
to make this an annual endeavor.

I've attended numerous NOSDA CAO and OMSSA meetings and leadership tables with the topics center-
ing around COVID-19 pressures, affordable housing and the upcoming provincial budget. | realize by the

time you read this report the provincial budget will be out and we will have had some time to digest it.

As shared last month, the government announced its plan to support economic recovery and employment
through a new Social Assistance Recovery and Renewal Plan and we will be acting as one of the proto-
type sites for a centralized intake process for social assistance. | am pleased to share that the centralized
intake prototypes launched on November 2nd, 2020, The streamlined application process for social as-
sistance will improve the experience for applicants and reduce time-consuming paperwork for Casework-
ers so they can focus on helping people with the supports they need. A provincial-municipal joint project
team continues to meet regularly to work collaboratively on co-designing and implementing these proto-
types.



The first phase of the prototype includes:
+ a new online user-centric, mobile-friendly application
+ anew automated assessment process to process applications more quickly
+ streamlined process for social assistance applicants to confirm their identity in real time

The prototype phase will allow the ministry to test the centralized and automated risk-based intake pro-
cess, gather feedback, identify necessary changes and test new features and enhancements prior to a
wider rollout. Their goal is to expand centralized intake for Ontario Works across the province over the
next few months once the we prototype sites have been evaluated.

| was invited to speak at a meeting of the Rotary Club of Parry Sound. It was a fruitful discussion where |
was able to articulate the role of PSDSSAB in the community and how clubs like Rotary are vital to the
support of our clients. Rotary has taken a huge step forward in supporting the needs of the community
during the pandemic and we thank them for that.

We have made great pace in moving forward with the NOAH housing project. | am pleased to share that
the build is “on its way” and | will provide monthly updates starting in January. Below are a couple of pic-
tures that | share with excitement.




DIRECTLY OPERATED CHILD CARE PROGRAMS - Brenda Wiltshire, Manager

Licensed Child Care Programs

Total Children Utilizing Directly Operated Child Care in the District

July 2020

Age Group Ef{:"ée“' gﬁ;gteps g{g&a“ds g%geek HCCP | Total
ng?gtm) 0 0 3 4 14 21
(hmsom |3 12 7 14 20 61
ggfgf‘fy‘;‘ 14 13 19 30 36 12
(S:;‘_‘;%Iy’;‘ge 21 0 0 0 31 52
?:1?5 Q_gff"e 43 25 29 48 101 246

PERCENTAGE OF CHILDREN BY AGE GROUP

B Infant
® Toddler
B Preschool

B School Age

DIRECTLY OPERATED CHILD CARE WAITLIST BY
PROGRAM

B Fairview ®FirstSteps ®Highlands ®Waubeek mHCCP

[Ta]

o
I~ ~ ﬁ
- A o )
| 0o —t i
| <t N 1 ~Na T « 3]
oo I [+ o l ol
] Em_ 0 - 5 A n 1

JANUARY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER



All the Directly Operated Child Care Programs remain free of any positive COVID-19 tests and enrollment
continues to steadily increase as parents return to work. Licensed child care programs are required to
submit a report to the Ministry of Education whenever a child has 2 or more worsening symptoms not re-
lated to seasonal allergies or other chronic medical conditions. Parents can choose to have their child
tested for COVID-19 and return to care when a negative test result is received and their child is 24-hours
symptom-free or they can choose to self-isolate their child for 10 days and return to care when the child is
24-hours symptom-free. The Ministry of Education is supplying all licensed child care programs and Ear-
lyON Child and Family Centres with PPE as it is now required that all staff wear medical-grade masks and
face shields or eye protection such as safety goggles when interacting with the children. All other health
and safety protocols remain in place.

Inclusion Support Services

Inclusion Support Services Stats for September 2020

Licensed Early New
Age Group EarlyON | Learning & Total Waitlist Discharges

, Referrals

CCC’s
Infants
(0-18m) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Toddlers
(18m-30m) . 4 6 y l .
Preschool
(30m-4 y) 12 23 35 2 0 9
School Age

16 18 34 2 0 9

(4y+)
TOTAL 30 45 75 5 1 11

EarlyON Chitd and Family Programs

EarlyON Child and Family Centre - September 2020

Activity September 2020 { Year to Date
Number of Children Attending 11 2440
Number of New Children Attending 11 112

Number of Families Visiting 8 1865
Number of New Families Visiting 8 104

Number of Virtual Programming Events 10 147

The three main EarlyON sites (Parry Sound Hub, South River, and Burk’s Falls) have now re-opened and
are offering programming Monday's, Wednesday’s, and Friday's from 9:30am-12:00pm. Virtual program-
ming is continuing through social media and parent workshops such as Triple P will be offered virtually in
the coming weeks. The EarlyON Facilitators are working with community partners to begin offering the
Moms to Moms group using ZOOM where new mothers can meet up and share experiences with one an-
other and receive resources and information from community partners such as the local public health
unit, Handsthefamilyhelpnetwork, One Kids Place, and our own program facilitators. Topics will include:

child development, post-partum depression, nutrition, COVID-19 related concerns, etc.

5



ONTARIO WORKS - Jeff Degagne, Manager
Applications September 2020

Days to Grant Applications

**Data from the Social Assistance Performance Report and Tracking Impacts of COVID-19 report

We saw a decrease in OW and Emergency Assistance applications that we received in September. The
last 4 week period for CERB was paid from August 30th to September 26th, where people could then tran-

sition to El. This has helped mitigate the anticipated surge of OW applications.
MyBenefits

We are now at 12.02% of the caseload registered with the MyBenefits web service.
DBD Enrollment

We remain steady with 94% of the caseload registered for Direct Bank Deposit.

Payment Receipt Method-September 2020
2%

m Direct Bank Deposit ® Relpadable Payment Card = Paper Cheque



CHPI Spending - Social Assistance

Our CHPI spending for Social Assistance recipients was up from August. We saw an increase in clients
served as well. Spending was on par with September 2018 levels.

Community Homelessness Community Homelessness
Prevention (CHPI) Prevention (CHPI)
Applications Amount Spent | Applications Amount Spent
September 2020 September 2019
Ow-1 ow-3
Parry Sound ODSP-9 $7,260.60 ODSP-0 $6,679.10
, Ow-5 Ow-7
South River ODSP-5 $10,862.00 ODSP.8 $11,914.70
OW-6 OW-10
TOTAL "ODSP-14 $18,122.60 ODSP-8 $18,593.80
Ontario Works Call Volume Statistics
Ontario Works Call Volume
4000
3500 :
3000
2500
2000
1500
1000
500
0
Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20
@ Inbound Calls & Outbound Calls

Call volume to OW Caseworkers increased slightly in September and has remained steady throughout the
summer months and as we enter the autumn months. This does not include other methods of communi-

cation such as texting or email.



Employment

EXITSTO EMPLOYMENT
The program had a great month in
22 supporting people exiting to Employ-
ment. Nearly 4% of the caseload
moved to employment and 44% of all

of our case closures in September
/ \ were to employment. In comparison to
9 / September 2019, we doubled the to-
8 — tal amount of people that moved to
e employment. This is positive as this is
typically a time when seasonal em-

ployment begins to wind down.
March April May June luly August  September

— —Exitsto Employment

Data from the Social Assistance Performance Report

2020 Caseload Activity

650

600

; : » » ; ¢ M 3 ]
ey o ﬁl‘" e W w? w P“ﬁﬁs sw\to\“‘ o

—2020 Actual =*2020 Budget =+=2019 Actual

LEGEND | JAN | FEB | MAR | APR | MAY | JUNE | JULY | AUG | SEPT | OCT | NOV | DEC

2020 783 783 817 813 763 729 704 674 630
Actual
2020
891 905 924 911 886 845 786 747 749 764 769 833
Budget
2019

300 807 815 805 801 768 743 734 721 734 760 742
Actual




CHILD CARE SERVICE MANAGEMENT - Jeff Degagne. Manager
OLAF

2020 OLAF Fee Subsidy Applications

"
& S $

h)

14
12
10

[+ +]

[+

F-Y

[\ 8]

o

2
\'g‘\\)

&
) o~
‘(é?& N

]
S & s®
v &

o

® Eligible m Not Eligible/Other

Child Care Fee Subsidy Statistics September 2020

Total Children by Funding Source in District

"%

8 Subsidized  ® FullFee = Ontario Works  m Extended Day Fee Subsidy



HOUSING & INTEGRATED SERVICES - Pam Nelson, Manager

Housing Programs

Social Housing Centralized Waitlist Report - September 2020

East Parry Sound West Parry Sound | Total

Seniors 8 93 101

Families 81 327 408

Individuals 265 202 467

Total 354 622 976

Total Waitlist Unduplicated 412
Community Housing Centralized Waitlist (CWL) 2019-2020 Comparison
Applications and Households Housed from the CWL
Month | New { New SPP Month | New New SPP
2019 | App | SPP Cancelled | Housed Housed | 2020 | App SPP Cancelled | Housed Housed
Jan 15 4 1 Jan 6 1 6 5 0
Feb 10 3 7 1 Feb 15 11 3
Mar 9 1 1 1 Mar 10
Apr 16 2 1 Apr 3 5 4
May 13 1 2 1 May 1 3 2
June 4 3 4 1 June 1 3
July 4 1 5 2 1 July 5 13 2
Aug 9 14 3 1 Aug 10 6 2
Sept 10 1 3 Sept 4 2 6 3 1
Oct 6 2 3 Oct
Nov 9 1 1 Nov
Dec 9 8 Dec
Total | 105 |5 38 25 4 Total 55 3 58 21 |

** SPP = Special Priority Applicant**

¢+ New apps include two (2) applicants who refused an offer of accommaodation and were placed back on the wait-
list with a new chronological date
Two (2) cancellations were due fo Offers of Accommeodation unable to contact applicant with information on file
Three (3} cancellations were refusals of Cffers of Accommodation and applicants requested to be removed from

the waitlist

¢ One (1} request to be removed from the waitlist

10




Homeless Prevention Program - Community Relations Workers

For the month of September 2020

Support

All services performed, provided, or arranged by the Homeless-
ness Prevention Program staff to promote, improve, sustain, or
restore appropriate housing for individuals active with the Home-
lessness Prevention Program, periodically within the month, not

requiring intense case management,

Intense Case Management

Intense Case Management involves the coordination of appropri-
ate services and the provision of consistent and on-going weekly
supports, required by the individual to obtain and sustain hous-

ing stability.
Contact/Referrals
East West YTD
Homeless | 2 2 27
At Risk 2 4 57

Household Income Sources and Issuance from CHP|

Income Source | Total | CHPI

ODSP 1 $50.00

Low Income 7 $3,423.88
Cali Voiume

Community Relations Workers Calls

Short Term Housing Allowance

Income Source East West
Senior 6 7
ODSP 13 26
Ontario Works 2 8
Low Income 12 27
Income Source | East West
Senior 7 9
ODSP 10 20
Ontario Works 3 9
Low Income 8 18

Month Active YTD
September | 8 23
Reason for Issue Total
Rental Arrears $2,594.00
Transportation $47.00
Food/Household/Misc. $295.00
Emergency Housing $537.88

Septemb I i Outgoi
o é;ﬁ?sm e cae B Total *this does not include communication through
textbase/email with clients
CRW’s(2) | 119 425 544
Assessmen Workers Reception
September Incoming | Outgoing September Incoming | Qutgoing
2020 Calls Calls Total 2020 Calls Calls Total
South River 128 245 373 South River | 351 137 488
Parry Sound | 119 219 338 Parry Sound | 826 192 1,018

11




HOUSING OPERATIONS - Sharon Davis, Manager

Esprit Place Family Resource Centre

Emergency Shelter Services September 2020 Year to Date (2020)
Number of Women who stayed in
shelter this month 8
Those new to the shelter 55
this year:
Number of women who
stayed in the shelter
Those who have stayed this year who were
and had prior stays in the unique to the shelter
year:
Those who have stayed
and were carried over from
last month:
Number of Children Active in 0 9
program this month
Number of New Admissions 4 14
{Children) (unduplicated)
Direct Service Hours to Women 80 636
(Shelter and counselling)
Resident Bed Nights (Women &
Children) iy G
Occupancy Rate 35% 42%
Days at capacity 0 2]
Days over-capacity 0 7
Phone Interactions (crisis/ 58 528
support)
Outreach Services
September | Year-to-Date
2020 2020
Number of Women Served this Month 14 92
Number of Women Registered in the Program | 8 47
Number of Public Ed/Groups Offered 0 4

12



Transitional Support
September | Year-to-Date
2020 2020
Number of Women Served this Month 7 53
Number of Women Registered in Program 5 33
Number of Public Ed/Groups Offered 0 0
Child Witness Program
September | Year-to-Date
2020 2020
Number of Children Served this Month 3 44
Number of Children Registered in Program | 0 18
Number of Public Ed/Groups Offered 0 1

Due to COVID-19, admission into the shelter is strictly based upon a woman who is actively fleeing a vio-
lent situation to include victims of human trafficking. Screening for COVID-19 is completed upon intake.
The use of local motels is utilized for isolation, and physical distancing where appropriate. Support is pro-
vided to all women placed in motel stays, and will be counted as a “New Admission”.

Capacity in the shelter has been reduced from 10 women to 5 based on physical distancing capacity.

13



Parry Sound Housing Corporation

. . . September |Year-to-Date
Parry Sound Housing Corporation Activity 2020 2020
Move Outs September 30", 2020 3 29
Move Ins September 1%, 2020 3 42
L1 Forms Issued in September 2020 |0 11
N4 - Notice for eviction for non-payment Issued in September 2020 |0 4
of rent
NS. - NO.tICC of eviction for disturbing the September 2020 1 6
quiet enjoyment of the other occupants
N7 - Notllce of eviction for willful dam- September 2020 i 3
age to unit
COVID Wellness Checks September 2020 95
Pest Control September 2020 - 8 buildings are monitored monthly
Paramedicine September 2020 3 buildings
Tenant Home Visits September 13

Capital and Maintenance
Activity for the month of September

As part of increasing security measures within the buildings, security cameras have now been installed at
66 Church Street.

Walkways and patio replacement is now underway for the Magnetawan building. Not only will it be more
steady to walk on, but also will improve the general aesthetic of the property. This project is scheduled to
be completed by mid October.

The TV antenna has finally come down at the Roselawn building in South River!

Some strong winds made it very evident that some large trees were in need of removal before any dam-

age could be done. 66 Church Street has seen a clean up of dangerous trees this month, both in front
and in the back yard.

14



The Municipality of 560 clark street
Powa Qey() a n P.O. Box 250 Tel: (705) 724-2813
i Powassan, Ontario POH 1Z0  Fax: {705} 724-5533 www.powassan.net

Minutes
Municipal Emergency Control Group Meeting
1400hrs, November 10th, 2020 - Station 1, 252 Clark Street

*Some items were addressed or re-addressed in a follow-up meeting November 12t at 0900hrs
after knowledge of more local cases was made available. * Denotes the discussion of these
items.

Subject: Municipal Operations During Phase 3 of Provincial Re-opening

Present: Mayor Peter Mclsaac, CAO Maureen Lang, Fire Chief Bill Cox, Emergency
Information Officer Lesley Marshall, Recreation and Facilities Manager Mike Heasman,
Community Emergency Management Coordinator Ben Mousseau, TCCC Manager Dale
Jardine

1400hrs - Call to Order

1. Voodoos return to play.

Mike Heasman advised he is receiving inquiries from the NOJHL commissioner regarding
altering arena protocols for Voodoo's to run games, including allowing spectators. Mike also
communicated with the Voodoos Management who indicated they have no intention to
operate until January at the earliest. It was decided that we will not alter arena protocol for
any user as this could lead to increasing the risk of spreading Covid-19, would not be
equitable to other user groups, and may violate current regulations.

2. Public Skating

Queries have been received by staff and councillors regarding public skating. It was re-
iterated that it is currently not operating because there is no organization to oversee it and
bear responsibility for users. Currently all other ice times have an organization or a figurehead
to ensure protocols are being followed. It was discussed that the TC booster club could
potentially act as a renter if they want to identify a person who would be responsible for
managing it. *“With the increase in local cases, it was decided that it is not the appropriate time
to explore this as a possibility.

3. Grace House

Grace House has remained closed through the pandemic but the operators are now expressing
interest in re-opening. A set of requirements to allow them to operate were discussed by the
group and included; mandatory masks, mandatory active screening for workers and patrons,
only certain dedicated workers permitted to operate, cleaning costs will be associated to each
day of operation, they must submit an operation plan that is satisfactory to the municipality,

Page 1 of 2



no public access to washrooms, donated items must be collected and sorted offsite and
sanitized before being brought into 250 Clark. * With the increase in local cases, it was decided
that it is not the appropriate time to explore re-opening as a possibility.

4.Ontario’s New Regional Framework

The province has instituted a new colour-coded, regional framework for Covid restrictions.
NBPSDHU is currently in the least restrictive category - Green (prevent). It was agreed that
Lesley Marshal will draft a document to brief council on the implications to municipal
operations if our region is moved to the next category - yellow (Protect) upon receiving
clarification from the Health Unit.

5. Bell Outage

On October 27th, a Bell fibre optic line was severed by road workers on a highway near
Callander. This resulted in Bell cellular and internet service, and landline service in some cases
in the municipality to be cut off for 2-3 days. Council deferred this subject to the emergency
management committee for discussion. After some discussion, it was resolved that there is
little we are able to do as a Municipality to avoid this type of rare event. It should be
acknowledged in our emergency preparedness messaging though. Just like preparing a 72-
hour kit for extreme weather and making emergency plans, it would be wise to have a back
up plan for communication outages.

6. Food Bank Toy Drive

Lesley is in contact with Dianne Cole at the food bonk regarding the annual toy drive and
distribution to families. Traditionally it was held in the gymnasium and it was set up as a sort
of shopping mall type experience. Planning is under way to make it happen with Covid
restrictions in mind. It will likely be held in Maple Room to limit access to the rest of the
building, items will be in pre-packaged hampers instead of a shopping atmosphere, it will be
by appointment only. Planning continues, Lesley will be the point person for the municipality.

7. Library

*With an increase in the number of local cases, it was decided that we should ensure the
library is aware for the safety of them and their patrons and recommend limiting access to the
building again.

8. *It was decided that activities and classes at 250 Clark will be paused for indeterminate
length of time until regional cases have declined. Additionally, the occupancy of the fitness
centre will be further reduced to a maximum of 6, and more equipment removed to permit
increased distancing.

1615 - Adjourn

Page 2 of 2



National Disaster Mitigation Program. - Intake 6

The Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing is pleased to advise that the federal government is
opening a new intake of the National Disaster Mitigation Program (NDMP).

Under this intake, the NDMP may provide up to 50 per cent federal funding, to a maximum of $1.5
million per project, for following projects:

1) Flood risk assessments

2) Flood mapping

3) Flood mitigation plans

4) Non-structural flood mitigation projects (structural projects are not eligible)

Municipalities, conservation authorities and other eligible organizations in Ontario are invited to
submit proposals for projects to be undertaken between April 1, 2021 and March 31, 2022.

For Ontario applicants, proposal forms and risk assessment information templates must be
submitted to National.Disaster.Mitigation.Program@0Ontari¢.ca by December 1, 2020.

The ministry will review all proposals received. All those that meet program requirements will be
submitted to the federal government for funding consideration. Funding decisions are made by the
federal government and are subject to federal program approvals and availability of funds.

A high proportion of the projects submitted by Ontario under previous intakes of this program have
been approved, so we encourage you to apply to help reduce flood risk in your community. Projects
can address any kind of flooding, whether riverine, shoreline or urban.

For more information about the program and how to apply, we invite you to join a webinar hosted by
the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing.

Dates and times Registration

Friday, November 13 at 11:00 am

Register
Monday, November 16 at 3:00 pm

Ontario

5| M. 17[
]




List: Eligible Costs

# | Eligib
1 | New research and data colfection. B - i e
I 2 | Flood mapping and forecasting.
3 | Flood resistant construction techniques.
4 ' Hazard mapping and forecasting.
5 | Professional services support. S )
6 ) --—P_u_rchase of eq;i;nTen_t_u_s;dto Gﬁ&é&éﬁé}ni’ugauon and/or support the | i;nl_)l_err_le_ntation of permanent il
{ structural mitigation measures.
7 Building community partnerships for the purpese of disaster risk re reductlon. - ]
s : | Consultant fees.
) | Hazard, impact, risk, vulnerability and assessments.
10 i Development of disaster mitigation plans.
1  Public awareness and education,
12 | Building standards and enforcement. - - ]
13 |Nomstructuralretrofitting. T
14 | Land use planning controls.
15 | Planning and feasibility activities for structural mitigation investments.
16 Non-structural measures that will enhance proactive whole-of-community flood mitigation measures and
|resilience to associated hazards and risks.
17 | Post-flood finishing costs for measures undertaken within the eligibie period
18 Measures taken ;o-néiem&wn;ﬁaw residences only.
19 | Exceptional salary costs, benefits and incidentals.
20 1Exceptional administrative costs.
21 | Materials,
22 Facilities. o ) .
23 Exceptiona_l_fr;r;nt;r{atlon costs.
24____ Other inc::rre;l ;:osts that are directly attributed to the implementation of non-structural flood mitigation

measures,

Page 90f 12



List: lnellgll:_)_!_e Costs

#

Ineligible Costs

Costs relating to events and equipment which are considered to be the routine responsibility of provincial
ministries or first rasponder agencies such as police, f' ire and ambulance.

Ongoing operating and maintenance costs for NDMP inltiatives followlng completion of the project,

Agreement,.

The value assigned to data that was procured or collected prior to the establishment of the project Contribution |

Administrative costs which are not directly related to a specific NDMP project. Each recipient is expected to
absorb the routine costs of doing business. Examples such as regular salaries and benefits, audit costs, office
furniture, equipment, office supplies, committee worl, administration and supervision of NDMP, are not to be
cost-shared. It is recognized that certain proposals incur extraordinary administrative expenses, which are
incremental to the routine costs of providing government services; these expenses can be considered for cost-
sharing and shall be clearly identified in detail at the proposal stage,

| Hospitality costs.

|2 S

Mitigation project that would yield only temporary measures {e.g., use of sandbags).

Mitigation projects that would create ongoing need for funds from the federal government or from its recipient
that cannot be absorbed in their current budget.

5
6
7
8

Damages and Interests resultmg from any action or omission causing harm to a third party for which the
Recipient is held civilly liable by a Court and has to pay; or fines under any municipal, provincial, territorial or
federal legislation resulting from a transgression by the Recipient, ar any amount resulting from any settlement
entered into by the Recipient, or imposed by a Court, including an Arbiter, to the Recipient in relation with the
funded NDMP project,

10
1
12

Taxes other than the PST or provincial part of the I-iST.
1 Projects that address needs that are not related to preventionlmitlgatlon.

Page 100f12



Annex A

National Disaster Mitigation Program (NDMP)
Risk Assessment Information Template (RAIT) Users' Guide

1. Overview

Following severe flooding in Saskatchewan. Manitoba and Quebec in 2011, Economic Action
Plan 2012 proposed the Government discuss with provinces and territories (P/Ts) the
development of a National Disaster Mitigation Program (NDMP), recognizing that mitigation
can lessen the impact of natural disasters on vulnerable communities and reduce the costs
associated with these events.

Of the four components of emergency management, mitigation is the most effective means to
reduce or eliminate the impacts of disasters. While preparedness. response and recovery help
ensure that. once a disaster strikes, the impacts are managed efficiently, mitigation measures can
prevent the impacts from occurring at all. or reduce the negative consequences if they do occur.

Investment in disaster mitigation leads to significant relative savings in future response and
recovery costs (compared to costs if no mitigation measures were taken). While future disaster
costs cannot be predicted with certainty, the relative savings generated by mitigation investments
have been demonstrated by governments, international organizations, and private industry world-
wide,

A key element of any sound mitigation program is an understanding of both the potential risk of
an event occurring, as well as the potential impacts should the risk be realized. Utilizing a risk
assessment process, emergency management planners can begin to make proactive, risk-based
decisions regarding the potential events that might impact their communities, and determine
what priority measures can be taken, if possible, to improve the safety and resilience of their
communities.

Risk assessments can be used by federal, provincial/territorial and municipal governments, as
well as other stakeholders, to inform emergency management (EM) decision making across all
four components of EM. The assessment process allows stakeholders to identify and prioritize
those risks that are likely to create the most disruption to them. The assessment also helps
decision-makers to identify and describe hazards and assess impacts and consequences based
upon the vulnerability or exposure of the local area, or its functions to that hazard.

The risk assessment approach aims to understand the likely impacts of a range of emergency
scenarios upon community assets, values and functions. As such, risk assessments provide an
opportunity for multiple impacts and consequences to be considered enabling collaborative risk
treatment plans and emergency management measures to be described.



The outputs of the assessment process can be used to better inform emergency management
planning and priority setting, introduce risk action plans, and ensure that communities are aware
of and better informed about hazards and the associated risks that may affect them.

2. NDMP Data and Information Collection for Identified Hazards

The NDMP risk assessment information template (RAIT) is a basic tool that has been developed
by Public Safety Canada (PS) in consultation with other government departments, experts in risk
assessment best practices, and international leaders in this area, for the input of risk information
by funding applicants, based on a completed risk assessment process. The template was designed
to allow comparability of information and data outputs from a variety of risk assessment
methodologies that may be used.

The risk information will be used to support the application for which mitigation funding is
being sought, All applicants must complete a risk assessment information template (RAIT) for
funding consideration under streams two, three and four of the NDMP. In addition to the risk
assessment information template (RAIT), PS encourages all applicants to submit their detailed
risk assessments as supporting documentation, thereby providing PS with a broader
understanding of risk across Canada.

The completed risk assessment information template (RAIT) should outline and describe local
risk, including an estimate of the likelihood of occurrence. potential magnitude and type of
consequences or impacts. This should present factual supporting information.

Risk event descriptions should include, where possible, historical context, which allows for
research into trends and longer term analysis. Information based on current risk, as well as future
risk such as that brought upon by climate change, should be included.

Applicants should also ensure that prevention. mitigation and preparedness activities for the
proposed area take into account existing infrastructure, technologies and community/regional
capabilities. Local experts and experts from agencies at other government levels, may be
invaluable resources to help gain important information regarding specific risk criteria,

3. Consequence/Impact Assessment

The following section provides a description of the different impact criteria that should be
completed within the risk assessment information template (RAIT). In addition, descriptions of
the risk ranking and definitions associated with the five-point scale used to define the impacts are
presented. The impact risk rating definitions are based on qualitative and quantitative elements
referenced from a diverse array of risk and resilience methodologies and external risk
management models.

a. People and Societal Impacts
It is a priority at the municipal, provincial and federal levels to protect the health and
safety of Canadians. Impacts on people are considered pertinent in the assessment
process given that natural hazards can result in significant societal disruptions such as



evacuations and relocations as well as injuries, immediate deaths, and deaths resulting
from unattended injuries or displacement. As such, the following impact criteria will be
assessed on a 1 to 5 scale:

o number of fatalities;

o ability for local healthcare resources to address injuries; and

o number of individuals displaced and duration of displacement.
Environmental Impacts
A priority for municipal. provincial and federal governments is to protect Canada's
natural environment for current and future generations. As such, environmental impacts
were included in the assessment to measure the risk event in relation to the degree of
damage and predicted scope of clean-up and restoration needed following an event. The
definitions consider the direct and indirect environmental impacts within the defined
geographic area on a 1 to 5 scale, and include an assessment of air quality, water quality
and availability (exclusive to on land and in-ground water), and various other nature
indicators,

Local Economic Impacts

There may be impacts on the local economy that are the result of a risk event occurring.
Local economic impacts attempt to capture the value of damages or losses to local
economically productive assets, as well as disruptions to the normal functioning of the
community/region's local economic system. The definitions consider the local economic
impacts within the defined geographic area on a | to 5 scale, and should consider direct
and indirect economic losses (i.e. productivity losses, capital losses, operating costs,
financial institutions and other financial losses).

Local Infrastructure Impacts

There are several local infrastructure components, as per a variety of risk assessment and
management sources and guidelines that are fundamental to the viability and
sustainability of a community/region. Those components that appear most pertinent to
assess impacts resulting from natural hazards, such as floods, include: energy and
utilities; information and communication technology; transportation; health, food and
water; and safety and security. At a minimum, an assessment of the aforementioned
components must be completed, defined on a 1 to 5 scale, and should consider both direct
and indirect impacts.

It is important to note that Critical Infrastructure, in Canada, includes the following ten
sectors: energy and utilities, information and communications technology. finance.
healthcare, food, water, transportation. safety, government and manufacturing. Currently,
the National Disaster Mitigation Program attempts to leverage those elements thought to
be most relevant to identify and assess local flood risk to communities while
complementing other Government initiatives, such as the National Strategy and Action
Plan for Critical Infrastructure.

Public Sensitivity Impacts
Public sensitivity was included as an impact criterion given that credibility of
governments is founded on the public's trust that all levels of government will respond



effectively to a disaster event. The definitions consider the impacts on public visibility on
a | to 5 scale, and include an assessment of public perception of government institutions.
and trust and confidence in public institutions.

4, Confidence Levels

The risk assessment process requires confidence levels to be defined, particularly since
confidence levels can vary considerably depending on the availability of quality data, availability
of relevant expertise to feed the risk assessment process, and the existing Canadian body of
knowledge associated with specific natural hazards and natural disaster events.

Confidence levels have been defined using letters ranging from A to E. where 'A’ is the highest
confidence level and 'E' is the lowest. This approach was taken to ensure all applicants can
determine the confidence in their risk assessment in a simplified, straightforward manner, which
also ensures that a more consistent representation of confidence levels is being determined across
all submissions.

Applicants are required to indicate in the risk assessment information template (RAIT), their
level of confidence in the likelihood estimate and impact risk ratings associated with the natural
hazard risk event. Applicants can also provide a justification for the confidence level in the risk
assessment information template (RAIT), including references and sources to support the
assigned confidence level.



L

Maureen Lang

From: Alkins, Melanie (ENDM) <Melanie.Alkins@ontario.ca>

Sent: Tuesday, November 10, 2020 9:52 AM

Subject: FW: Funding Inclusive Community Grant/Subventions pour des collectivités inclusives
Importance: High

Good Morning,

Please see funding announcement below for funding designed to sustain existing, and create new,
Age-Friendly Communities (AFCs) for older adults and people of all abilities by supporting projects
with funding of up to $60,000.

Please contact Caroline Loiselle for more information and help with your application.
Please do share with those in our networks and those that may benefit.

Best,
Meianie

From: Loiselle, Caroline (MHSTCI/MSAA) <Caroline.Loiselle@ontario.ca>

Sent: November 10, 2020 9:37 AM

Cc: Loiselle, Caroline {(MHSTCI/MSAA) <Caroline Loiselle@ontario.ca>

Subject: Funding Inclusive Community Grant/Subventions pour des collectivités inclusives
Importance: High

Inclusive Community Grants

We are now accepting applications for Inclusive Community Grants. Applications will close on
December 21, 2020

Inclusive Community Grants are designed to sustain existing, and create new, Age-Friendly
Communities (AFCs) for older adults and people of all abilities by supporting projects with funding of
up to $60,000.

Projects can be focused on assisting:
« small urban/rural communities
» under-served populations
» diverse population of adults including Indigenous and immigrants
« older adults, including those with accessibility needs
« individuals self-isolating and following social distancing due to COVID-19

This year, we are focusing on programing that can be delivered remotely or virtually. The grants will
help develop programs for older adults and people of all abilities that focus on:

» connecting people with their communities

» making communities inclusive and age-friendly

Eligibility ORE re| Moy /7/:20
t ce \3-d
B




Local governments and community organizations, including previous Age Friendly Community
Planning Grant recipients can apply for Inclusive Community Grants.

Guidelines
Read the detailed guidelines.

How to apply

Apply online through Transfer Payment Ontario (formerly Grants Ontario).

Applicants must have a ONe-key account and ID and registered their organization in the Transfer
Payment Ontario system to apply. Setting up an account may take up to five business days so allow
at least one week to register before starting the application process.

Learn how to access Transfer Payment Ontario and set up a One-key account.
The deadline to submit applications for both streams is 5:00 p.m. December 21, 2020. We will not
process applications that we receive after the deadline.

Questions
If you have questions about Inclusive Community Grants, please contact:

Caroline Loiselle, Regional Development Advisor
Regional and Corporate Services Division de la culture

Ministry for Seniors and Accessibility
Phone: 705-494-0139 Emall | courriel: caroline.loiselle@ontario.ca

Subventions pour'des collectivités inclusives

Nous acceptons maintenant les demandes pour les Subventions pour des collectivités
inclusives. La période de présentation des demandes se terminera le 21 décembre 2020.

Les Subventions pour des collectivités inclusives sont congues pour soutenir des collectivités-amies
des alnes existantes et en créer de nouvelles a l'intention des adultes plus 4gés et des personnes de
toutes capacités en appuyant des projets avec un financement allant jusqu'a 60 000 $.

Les projets peuvent étre axés sur l'aide :
« aux petites collectivités urbaines et rurales
« aux populations mal desservies
+ a la population adulte diversifiée, y compris les Autochtones et les immigrants
« aux adultes plus agés, y compris ceux ayant des besoins en matiére d'accessibilité
« aux personnes qui s'auto-isolent et respectent la distanciation sociale en raison de la
pandémie de COVID-19

Cette année, nous nous concentrons sur des programmes pouvant étre offerts de fagon virtuelle ou 8
distance. Les subventions permettront de mettre sur pied des programmes a I'intention des adultes
plus 4gés et des personnes de toutes capacités axés sur ce qui suit :

« relier les gens a leurs collectivités

+ rendre les collectivités inclusives et amies des ainés

Admissibilité

Les gouvernements locaux et les organismes communautaires, y compris les bénéficiaires antérieurs
de la Subvention pour la planification communautaire amie des ainés, peuvent présenter une
demande pour les Subventions pour des collectivités inclusives.

2



Maureen Lang

From: ICIPCOVID (MO} <ICIPCOVID@ontario.ca>

Sent: Friday, November 6, 2020 10:55 AM

To: Maureen Lang

Cc: Codey Munshaw

Subject: COVID-19 Resilience Infrastructure Stream: Local Government Intake Notification
Attachments: Appendix A - Remote Communities.pdf; Appendix B - Project Eligibility Criteria.pdf

Dear Maureen Lang,
Municipality of Powassan

Re: Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program (ICIP) — COVID-19 Resilience Infrastructure Stream

On October 28, 2020, Ontario announced the COVID-18 Resilience Infrastructure Stream ("COVID stream”)
under the Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program (ICIP) in Ontario.

Under the new COVID stream, $250 million in combined federal-provincial funding will be dedicated to local
governments across the province. Your municipality’s allocation is $100,000 for this new stream.

The federal government has indicated that investments under this stream are to support public infrastructure,
defined as tangible capital assets, including temporary infrastructure related to pandemic response, primarily
for public use and/or benefit. According to federal parameters, eligible projects include (see Appendix B for full
details):

¢ Retrofits, Repairs and Upgrades for municipal, provincial, territorial and indigenous buildings, health
infrastructure and educational infrastructure;

e COVID-19 Response Infrastructure, including measures to support physical distancing;

* Active Transportation Infrastructure, including parks, trails, foot bridges, bike lanes and multi-use
paths; and

» Disaster Mitigation and Adaptation, including natural infrastructure, flood and fire mitigation, tree
planting and related infrastructure.

Municipalities should work with the federal eligibility criteria to identify projects to address COVID-19 responses
and resilience, including in municipal/regional owned long-term care homes. Municipalities are also able to
partner with not-for-profit and broader public sector organizations (e.g. any public sector body) and submit
projects on their behalf, using their municipal allocations. This will be subject to the municipality's own project
evaluation prior to submission to the province. Not-for-profits and broader public sector organizations are not
eligible to apply on their own. More information will be available on this in the program guidelines.

As with other ICIP streams, projects that have aiready commenced construction or contain no capital
components (i.e. planning projects) are ineligible for funding under this intake. Additionally, costs for land
acquisition, infrastructure for tourism or facilities home to a professional sports team, and any project already
nominated to the federal government under another ICIP stream are ineligible under the COVID stream.

Municipalities will not be required to cost-share under this stream. The federal government will cover 80% of
the total eligible costs associated with any approved project and Ontario will cover 20%, however, total eligible
costs for all submitted projects cannot exceed your municipal allocation noted above.

Municipalities will have the opportunity to submit projects for review and approval, but eligible costs associated
with any given project cannot exceed $10 million.
OF
1 COUNGHL MTE. MOV . /b/&o

e | 153




There will be a project cap based on your municipal allocation:
¢ 1 project submission for those receiving a maximum of $100,000;
e 2 project submissions for those receiving $100,001 to a maximum of $500,000; and,
* 5 project submissions for those receiving $500,001 and above.

Projects are limited to one of four categories as outlined by the federal government in the list in appendix B.
Please contact our delivery team (email below) if you have questions about this. Municipalities can bundle
various assets, within one of the four categories, under one project submission.

The federal timelines of this program require all parties to work together quickly to implement funding.
Applications will be reviewed and prioritized by the province based on a rolling intake (i.e. first-come, first-
served), but the following deadlines will apply:

» Applications for single projects must be submitted to the province through the Transfer Payment
Ontario (TPON) system by December 21, 2020,

* Applications for multiple projects must be submitted to the province through the Transfer Payment
Ontario (TPON) system by January 7, 2021;

* Projects must have started construction by September 30, 2021; and,

e Projects must have completed construction by December 31, 2021; except for remote communities
which will have until December 31, 2022 (see below).

Only projects that meet the above criteria, as well as those that will follow in the provincial program guidelines
will be considered for nomination by the Province to the federal government. No deadline extensions will be
considered. If you do not submit your application on time, or your project does not start and/or complete by the
deadlines required by the federal government, you will lose any opportunity to access this funding allocation.

As per federal parameters, remote communities will receive additional time and have until December 31, 2022
to complete project construction. Communities who fall under this definition, as per the Canada-Ontario
Integrated Bilateral Agreement, are outlined in the attached in Appendix A.

Application materials (i.e. application forms, program guidelines and federal Environmental
Assessment/Duty to Consult forms) will become available on the TPON website once the stream has
officially launched the week of November 16th. Please check back on the site for updates in the coming
weeks.

If you have questions about your municipality’s allocation, program eligibility, getting prepared for project
submission or would like a copy of this communication in French, please contact ICIPCOVID@ontario.ca for
support.

We look forward to working with you as you submit projects.
Sincerely,
Trevor Fleck

A/Director, Intergovernmental Policy and Delivery Branch
Ministry of Infrastructure



APPENDIX B: COVID-19 RESILIENCE INFRASTRUCTURE STREAM - PROJECT

ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA

Category 1: Retrofits, repairs and upgrades for municipal, provincial, territorial
and indigenous buildings, health infrastructure and schools.

Eligible Asset Type

Asset Sub-types

Municipal {local government)
and
provincial/territorial/Indigenous
buildings

o Administrative buildings
¢ Fire halls
¢ Police stations

| « Maintenance facilites

¢ Physical Plants

» Public works buildings (e.g. transformer sub-
stations, water treatments facilities, hazardous
waste disposal facilities)

* Food safety infrastructure (committee freezers,
green houses efc.)

¢ Any other municipal (local government) and

provincial/territorial/indigenous buildings that

deliver or provide services or programming.

Health infrastructure

. Hdspitals
e Morgues

| « Nursing homes and senior citizen homes
{ » Long-term care facilities
¢ Weliness centres

o Paramedic Services facility

» Health centres, clinics and other health care
buildings

o Community interest facility e.g. mental health and
addiction centres

+ Rehabilitation centres

Youth services facilities

Social and supportive housing

» Paramedic and support vehicles

Educational Infrastructure

o Day care facilities

» Schools (e.g. high school, ¢ollege)
¢ Adult education facilities

¢ Playgrounds

e Universities




2.

Sports facilities

Computer labs and web infrastructure
School theatres

School libraries

Performing arts centres

Colleges

Research centres

Student housing

Student services buildings
Agricultural education infrastructure (barns, green
houses, etc.)

Category 2: COVID-19 Resilience Infrastructure, including measures to support

physical distancing.

Eligible Asset Type

Asset Sub-types

Build or modify infrastructure
to respond to the Covid-19
pandemic

Safety retrofits for public sector buildings

Safety retrofits for rolling stock

New builds, retrofits, repairs or rebuilds of social
housing, long-term care facilities, seniors’ homes
or temporary housing (shelters) to support new
safety measures or physical distancing

Expand single rooms within existing hospitals
Separation infrastructure for infectious disease
care from other care (e.g., COVID-19 wards and
dedicated facilities)

Modular field hospitals, mobile ICU units or other
equipment to facilitate rapid expansion of
intensive care capacity

Renovate public facilities to serve as designated
hospital overflow sites

Emergency vehicles

Security support vehicles

Barriers

Passenger safety improvements

Driver safety improvements (barriers etc.)

Video screens and PA systems for
announcements

Automatic vehicle location technology




B

* Security enhancements
l o Food security infrastructure

Category 3: Active transportation infrastructure, including parks, trails, foot
bridges, bike lanes and multi-use paths.

Eligible Asset Type | Asset Sub-types B
Active transportation i o Parks trails and multi-use paths
| infrastructure o Bike and pedestrian lanes on existing or new
' roads or highways
¢ Sidewalks

« Footpaths and foot bridges

* Active transportation support facility (e.g. bike
parking/storage)

o Street and park furniture (e.g. benches, shade

i areas, planters)

Category 4: Disaster mitigation and adaptation infrastructure, including natural
infrastructure, flood and fire mitigation, and tree planting and related
infrastructure.

| Eligible Asset Type | Asset Sub-types
Climate Change, natural Natural:
disasters, extreme weather ¢ Forest

» Shoreline vegetation

» Green Roofs

+ Bioswales/rain gardens
e Aquifer

o Wetland restoration

Structural:
¢ Barriers

¢ Dams

¢ Dykes

¢ Drainage canals

| » Floodways

* Man-made wetlands

+ Retaining walls and other shoreline protection
such as rock revetment




-4 -

Seawalls and breakwaters

Weirs

Pump station (to increase hydraulic capacity and
reduce flooding)

Floods and Fires

Barriers

Dams

Dykes

Drainage canals

Floodways

Man-made wetlands

Retaining walls and other shoreline protection
such as rock revetment

Seawalls and breakwaters

Weirs

Pump station (to increase hydraulic capacity and
reduce flooding)

Assets associated with
afforestation and reforestation

Tree planting projects

Coordination or distribution centres

Nurseries

Greenhouses

Access roads and bridges (that provide access to
areas where tree planting will take place)




! #M3L
m \ YONIDY

or \P I'A oé 9L TNN0D .
403 89'S62°0£$ LNIWNHIAOO TVHINIO |EloL
Lz 268
126LEPE 00°000'6528  1JODAINENOD/ADVLISOd Q09190101 09288 09°L8% 0zmo/LL FOEVHO AJOD H3d 0ZA0/1 1 19550995
Sdb MSIN ‘NO "OLNOMOL ‘v NLS 6£5F XO8 "0'd "aL1 YOVYNYD XONIX 9ecol
96'0128
I2GLE'RS 00'000'62$  1JOOMYIINOI/IDVLSOd 009L9-0L-0L 866818 896'681% H3IdODAINENOY/IDVLEO 0Z/v0/ 1L STLCLLL
100 MSIN ‘NO ‘OLNOYOL 'V NLS £55% XO8 Od £55%1 O/D ‘NIANV1 39v13a 86.6
2Lrvses
8r'oLZ'Llg 00°000°023 $31ddNS 32340 0¥519-01-0} EF6LES EV6LES 0O/ $3I1ddNS 301440 02/v0/L L 0-£6589.L)
FHL 871 ‘NO “TTIH GNOWHOIY "LNIOSIUD %331 09 “TVHLNID 301440 8916
00°061$
(eg've9'z8) 0008 TIONNOS -NOLLIHE d £2019-01-01 00°06L% 00'061% 020/ W3IQ ¥3d ONY JOVITIN 0240711 0zozoe 120
021 HOd ‘NO ‘NVSSYMOd ‘3 Md  MIIA AFTTVA 02 ‘£€€ XO8 ‘NOLLI¥E 3AVA 5856
00°686'5$
SO'ELLLIS 00°000'62¢ WOIT R LIany 09519-01-01 BZ'E6E'SS 8Z'¢6E'GS 0Z/ro/LL 11any 0270/ 1 Irgees
S1Z 9id "NO ‘AvE HLHON ‘LOE 3LINS ‘M 1S THAINIOW Lol ‘d T YAVNYD 0a8 £ves
00'829%
{Z5°evi$) 000008 1NIWIND3 7 301430 0rel5-01-0t 950198 95019% ONINYZTD 301440 0270/ ) ive
0Z1 Hod ‘NO ‘NVSSYMOd ‘0Y 3OVSTV 90¥Z2 ‘NIVLSVE AITIIHS LZL6
66°.56'01%
(9s'10v'98)  000% dd div 0£ZEL-0L-0L 89'G85'ES 89'685'e$ QCre0/Et 0ZOZME/OL O 0Z0Z/LL/01 woy lI1ked OZ/E0/L1 £8014d
(8209L28) 000% I3 dv Ogzee-0i-01 FA - AN AT 0Z/eo/Lt 0ZOZ/OL/0L 0} 0ZOZ/LE/0L WOy oiAed 0Z/E0/L ) £201dd
(beese'ss) 0008 Lid div olZge-0t-0t LeopL'es l6'grL'cs 0cZ/eorntt 0Z0Z/0E/01 O3 0ZOZ/LH/0L Woy yoiked 0Z/EO/LL L801Ed
(€6°269°118) 0008 14 div 00zeE-01-01 :TATA Y 8z'gze'es 0Z/e0/11 0ZOZ/0L/01 0 0Z0Z/LL/0L Woy oiAed 0Z/E0/L ) £8014d
* £ 'SNOILONAAA TI0HAY - TVHINIO HIAAISOIY 0806
¥6'vZZTS
(o0:9'18) 0008 giIsmdiv 0geEe-0L-0t v6vze'es R4 0Z/e0/L) 0Z0Z/0L/0L 0 0Z0Z/L1/0L Woy |joiked 0Z/E0/ 11 LE014d
EAZ MSI ‘NO  OLNOYOL ‘v NOLLVLS ‘SLi¥ XO8 'O'd ‘GYVOS JONVUNSNI '? ALIIVS JOVIdHEOM ovo6
6.°¢65%$
(1e'6L1$) 00°0% WYHOOU- YYD 052 v5L19-01-01 196128 L961Z8 0Zivo/Ll T132 AVHO0Hd MHV1D 0SZ 0Z/v0/1L L 12218282¢C
yo'eee'vs 00°005°88 X¥d4 B INOH4I13AL 05519-01-01 oot or'ors 0zvoiLt 1130 NI3ANYW 0270711 41718282¢2
POELE'PS 00°005°2% X¥d 8 ANOHdI13L 05519-0L-01 A £5°258 0Z/r0/LL T130 YISO o 0Z/70/1 1 41218282¢2
(60'gzr'es) 0008 HOAVIN-OVVSIONW d 92019-0L-0L 91’568 g1'G6% oTvoiLL TI3D - DVVSIOW d 02/v0/1 )1 L121828CTT
(€L 'vpL8) 0008 TIDNNOQD -TYHY €2019-01-0L 16268 16°2£8 0ZivorLL 1130 TIvH o 02/70/1L L £1118282¢¢
(64€04$) 00°0% TINNODHSHVHIIL'A 2goioot-0lL 19028 19028 oTivo/LL T130 MSUYM3Id A 0Z/¥0/1 ) 1221828T¢T
6d€ OEW ‘NO ‘ STIW NOQ ‘0016 X0 "O'd ‘1LY S4390Y 2968
SL'STLLS
(69'691°5018) 00°0% d3H1O U 00S¥Z-01-01 LR TAR 005218 ozZvoiLL ONINMDADIH 001 ITdYIN HIHLO /Y 0Z/¥0/1L1 SLLIEL
SO% g1d ‘'NO * AV HLMON ‘1S3M LI AMH 9Z61 ‘ONITOADTY agy ares
€6°L9%
{zzver'zs)  000% ONITNNS-MHVTO 052 £5419-04-01 £0'pSS £€0°¥58 0ZrvoiLL STVANIY LVIN 0Z/v0/ 1L ozseel
18 gid ‘NO ' A¥E HLHON ‘Z9% X08 "IVINIY LY AVE HLHON 0688
INJNNAIAOD TVHINTO
asuejeg QLA $ paebpng uonduossag Junosoy 1B3qWINN JUNCIDY  Jwy paaciddy jwy adioau]  eq aNg uonduossag ayeq 13UINNIOAU|
JOpUBA

{uoday jeaosddy paunos)
uny anbayn Aieuiuitjoid d/y
i 9bed uessemod jo Ajedisunpy welEiLL 0Z0ZM/LL



ZTPres
¥8'506'2$ 00°000°0LS IONYNILNIVIN- LJIT I 0L0ZS-SL-01 ZTyres zerres 02 0rLL DNINYITO 0Z2/00/1 1 65¥9G.L
0ZLHOd ‘NO ‘NYSSYMOd ‘Y TTIH 31dVIN 6502 ‘SIDIANIS TVIHOLINY S.avdd 28001
00'1SES
(1522¢'v8) 0008 SLJ3N3g 01519-G1-01 00'061% 00°061% 0Z0/LL TYLN3IQ 02/+0/1L L020T/62/01L TYLN3T
(1s228'v%) 0008 S1i43anN3g 01519-51-0} 00°L91L% 00° 1918 0zo/LL TYAN3QA 0Z/40/L1  02/61L/01 TVIN3G
£EZVLd 'NO 'AVE HLYON Y3 FJEOHSIAMY §21 “AND ' TIVHOIW A 08001
68°0$
¥8°606'C$ 00°000°CLS IONYNILNIVIN-L43Q 3L 010295101 68°0¢$ 68°0£% 0ZH0sLL SHIVd3Y va0s 024071 | 66211
£XTHld 'NO ‘AVE HLYON V¥ ‘M 13341S NIVIN Z6%1 ‘3417 HVLS A8 ALFIVS YAYNYD SNVHL S£001
£6'61€$
69'9ZL'CL$ 00°000'tZS SHONYL-"1d3Q Fdid 0£029-G1-0L €6'61ES E6'61E$ 0e0/11 NOLLD3dSNI AL3dYS 0Z/A0/1L) 1009
0X} ¥0d ‘NO "H3AIY HINOS ‘045 XOF Od ‘PTE AMH $8Z “d171 IHLNID TDIAYIS 'SOHA HLIHAND §866
S1°2Z6%
20'p92'6ES 00000298  SNOILYH3dO- Ld3a FdId 02029-S1-01 Sl'.26% S1°.Z76% 0Z/e0/LL 1430 341d 9ISM 02/E0/ 1 020z o
€AZ MSIN "NO * OLNOYOL ‘¥ NOLLYLS ‘SLIP XO8 'O'd ‘Gdv0g SINVHNSNI B ALIIVS JOVIdMHOM or06
1L0°ZZ$
20'¥92'sES 00'000°29% SNOILYHILO-Ld3Q Jdid 0202e-51-01 L0'zes 10'2z$ 0zZ0NLL T30 X0O 9 020711 L1218282CT
6dg D ‘NO ‘' STTIW NOG 0016 X08 "0°d ‘LBLY SHID0H 2968
09°18$
ro6res 00°000'%$ ONIYIMSNY 'Ld33d JdId 000255101 09168 09°L5$ 0ZH0/LL HO1vdSIA 3did 0240711 0202L0LE
0P OEd ‘NO ‘ AMNEANS ‘133MLS H3GTV 0£Z “INI SIOIANIS SNOLLYDIINNWINOD NYNIHLHON £688
§5°L18
$2'506'2$ 00°000°0i$ IONYNILNIVN- Ld3A JdI4 0L029-61-01 GG /LS S6°11% QgorL IVLNIA LYW 02 0/1LL 125821
I8 Bid ‘NO * AVE HLHON ‘Z9% X008 “IVINTH LVIN AVE HLHON 0688
z0'8zes
20'v92'5e$ 00000298 SNOILYYIdO-Ld3a J3did 02029-51-01 20'82es FAVE-TAR QZo/LL SNOILYHIHO-" Ld3Q Fuld 020/ 1L 0ZE L L0066SEET00T
£1€ MSIN ‘NO ‘ OLNOHOL ‘v NLS ‘Z0¥ XOH "0'd ‘SHUOMLIN INO OMAAH F4:74]
06'859%
¥i'G2G' LIS 00'000'02% ANINLINDI- Ld3A IH1d 0¥029-61-01 068593 06'859¢% 0ZP0/LL AVLNIH HOLVYAYDX3T 0Z/0/1L1L 8128
021 HOd ‘NO* NVSSVMOd ‘¥€5 AVMHOIH 811 ‘ONILVAVIXT STHONH NYA3 1518
ILETREVEEEETE
bvoLzs MYV 0SZ Ej0L
00°09¢c$
L12v8% 00°000'6% WYHOOHd-MHVYIO 062 P6L19C1L0L 00°09¢$ 00°09¢% 02iro/LL SSY1D vEWNZ 02071 L W
“ff'olants aHL 65701
26°219'1$
G6°655'PS 00°000'v1S TYIHOLNY-MEYID 0SE SZSL9-Z1-01 86°219°1S 86°219'1$ O O/LL ONINVITD 0ZH0/11 6599G.L
0ZLHOd ‘NO ‘NYSSVYMOd ‘0d T1IH 31dVIN 650Z ‘SIDIAHIS TVINOLINYT S.avda ¢go0t
€LozZL$
S6°'655'vS 00 000'FLS IVIHOLINY-HHVID 062 g2ZsiocL-01 £1'9Z1% €1921% 02011 L SOVE A0VYAUYD 02/40/L L rroLliee
EXZT HLd ‘NO ' AvE HLHON '1SIM 1S NIV 8651 "INI S15NQ0Yd ¥3dVd NYHONYA 8206
MAVY1D 062
aoueleg LA $ pajebpng uonduosag unoosoy Jaqunpy UNoady  Juy paaoiddy  juny 3d10Au) 912 ang uonduasag ajeq 13QWINNa0oAL|

{1odey jeacuddy jrounog)
uny enbeayn Aieunuiold d/v
uessemod Jo Aynediounyy WeLELL 0202/9/LL



(sz'28v'Z$)

(er-zsv'es)

£0°L1£'98

0240615
£0°L1£'98

(95521 '2$)

gz'0ze'L2s

00°000'5%

15°€92'6%

(LOcrr'Ze)
(Loerr'zs)
(Lochr'ze)
(Locht'zs)
9z'02e'228

(10°ctp'es)
(Lo'ekP'Zs)

9z oze'Le$

asueeg @l

00'000'S$

00°0%

00°000'ZZS

00'000'58
00'000'228

00°000'058

00°000'658

00°000'5$

00'000'92%

00°000'v$
00°000'v3$
00°000'¥$
00°000'+$
00°000'69%

00°000'vS
00°000'v$

00°000'59%

$ pajebpng

-OHXOVE 0L

“H3INIMIHOIgYS #1102

-HANMHOIFYS |02

-NOL &/ qy04d 6002
“HINMHDI3YS L1102

dOLauvH

-SXHOM 21Nand

“NMOLNMOQ

HIANITLHOIFYL €102

7 LYW SMHOM DInand
? LYIN SHHOM DI1and
g LYW SHIOM DInand
'? 1YW SHHOM OINand

-SXH0M OInand

® LYW SHEOM 21nand
? LVIN SHEOM DINgnd

“SMHOM DInand

uopduoseq UNoIsy

26°¢Z1'0% SMHOM 21N1aNnd 18101

66°0LLS
029€9-0Z-0} 560113 66°0L1S 0Zw0/LL HOLIMS 0Z/40/LL 8¥rS0ELS
LISHPT 'NO ‘QHOINOD ‘L AMH (£1€ 'GLT SII™LSNANI LNOWOHOL 9z10l
tANL T4 S
S0SES-0Z-01 ZV 192 FANIL: T S 0zZIPO/LL ONIMOL 0Z/40/11 8£/09
0X1 v0d ‘NO "M3AIN HLNOS ‘045 X008 Od ‘¥ AMH #8Z a1 IHINTD IVAYIS 'SONE HLIZJIHD 5966
+8'255'2$
0Z5£9-02-01 #8°255'2$ ¥8'zec'zs 0ZH0/LL S3YIL 0Z/#0/1LL £65008/
#d9 DEH 20 “TYIULNOW ‘F1TIA FHLNID FTIVSUNIONS SZ2LE X0 Od ‘DSZ218N NLLY “ONI VIIHIAWY HLHON NITIHDIN 8¥66
81'220'L$
085£9-02-0F 92188 92188 020/1L S3YIL 0Z/H0/LL 50091
0Z5E9-02-0) ¥5°702$ ¥5 028 0Z/70/11L “HIAO IONYHD JHIL 0Z/v0/LL 90091
+98 Sid ‘NO ‘AVE HLHON ‘13341S LLINOHD $Z51 ‘OIANIS JLL SHOINNE 6526
56'L0¥S
0Ze£9-0Z-0t S6°LOVS $6°LOVE 0210111 Buidoams 19aus sauld ay) 0zZ/v0/LL 0610202
SINE NP1 ‘NO ‘18uVE ‘AVOY LNIOd AVE 919 101 ‘ONI STSINAYALINT HOINNG 7996
Z6'stLS
090£9-02-01 ZE'SYIS Z6'6rLS 0ZI0/LL NOLLN10S 0270711 £610€-861
SAY gld 'NO ‘AVE HLHON ‘GY ITTANVINYOD F15 ‘AVE HLHON “IOYLINOD LSNY NMOYA £156
8.°p58$
0Z8€9-0Z-01 8Lt58% 8.¥58% 0ZH0/ 1L SHUIANNYE AV FONVHEWIWIY 0Z/40/1L T ArA
OHL HOd ‘NO ‘N3ANVTIVD ‘avOH M3TuD ¥v3g 9Z¢1 Al SNOLLYTIVLSNI A31ana 9926
S5°6ZE$
095£9-02-01 95°6Z¢€$ 556288 0Z170/1LL 1M LHOINAVY3AH 0Z/40/1L4 QaisLeLLp
£€rg gid ‘NO ‘AVE HLMON ‘102 LINN GY ITUANYINHOD 009 ‘85 XOH Od ‘NMOYSE 'S'H - H3dINNEG OL ¥3dANg v.06
96°cPLS
§90£9-0Z-01 Gg'zTs 58°Zes 0TIFO/LL ¥918-26¥ 1130 Md 020711 LL118Z8TTT
G90£9-0Z-01 ¥6'95% +6'85% 0Z/70/LL 6919-26V 113D Md 02071 ) LLL18T8TTT
590£8-02-0) 19'02¢ 19°02$ 0zZ/vO/LL 1318v1 30V4HNS SHHOM 219Nd 024071 L 2221828222
§90£9-02-01 19'0Z% 19°0Z¢ 0ZIPO/ 1L TI13D SHHOM DNGnd 0Z/40/L L 1111928222
090£9-02-01 S6'0Z8 $6°07% 0ZH0s1LL T30 MYHSNNW O 0ZH0/L L 2211928222
6dE DLW "NO * STHIW NOG ‘0016 XO8 "O'd ‘L'BLY SN3ID0N z968
T8
590£9-02-01 90vLs QOrLS 0ZHoILL 334400 0TH0/LL 6£852
550¢9-02-01 gL'ELs 91ELS 0ZH0/LL WY3XD 0ZH0/L L 01852
0Z} HOd "NO ‘ NVSSYMOd ‘ZZ€ X08 '0°d ‘LYVYIN-NTVA S, 1T13HSO z168
L1928
090£9-02-01 Lri9T8 Ly 298 0ZH0sLL STVLNIH WHOLINN Md 0240711 66519
9Z¥ 3¢d 'NO ' AHNEANS ‘OVOd NINDNODTY 0£ZZ FDIAHIS WHOSINN NHIHLHMON 1638
SYMMOM 2119Nd
LT7156°C$ ININLHVY4J3A FHId (B30l
JaqUINN JUNO22Y  Juy paaociddy Jwy adioau] sjeq ang uonduasag ayeq 13CQUNNS2I0AL}
(vodey feaosddy praunon)

uny anbayn Aieuiwiieid d4/y
uessemod jo Ayjedioiunpy wessiLL QTOIV/LE



'Y

v Le6%

00'096'52%

IS¥18%

16'99Z'€TS

£1'ZE9'sE

(£8°996'82$)

88'659'128

eouejeg ala

00°005'2%

00'0ZE'Z0LS

00'c00°LS

00°000'92%

00°000°$

00°000'05%

00'000'00L$

$ pejabpng

7 Xvd ¥ INOHJI3L

AATTIWI0OHLSY3

“NINGY-NOILY3dDO3d

INSNIADEHOIND MVT-AD

“HOLO3dSNI ONIgTINg

“3LIS TI4AaNY1

WYHOO0Hd ONIMOADIY

uonadussag JUNoDY

0651.9-62-01

00299-09-01

019.9-55-0})

08629-05-01

012296¥01

016¥9-62-0L

0rey9-52-01

JOQUINN JUNDISY

8158
¥8'1LGS ¥e1G%

00'085°52%
00°085's2$
00°08%'62% 00'085'6Z%

19°02%

19°0Z$
19024 19°02$

LTS8

Frai-ity
FAAVA IR LT4L51%

06°15%

06°19%
06159 06'15%

£8°650°6%

60°6$

60'5% 60'6S

L '¥50°68

¥4 ¥50'6$ PLY50'68

Jjwy paacaddy  jwy as10au]

0zHOILL 132 INIGYYT G 0240711 1021828222
6dE Ot ‘NO ‘ STIIW NOQ ‘0016 X009 "0O°'d ‘L'2LY SHIDON z968
JUINID ALINAWINOD M33FHD LNOHL
S3OIAY3S H1TV3H IBj0L
OZHOILL O HL ¥ 02071 L 0Z0Z §1 100
0Z1 HOd ‘NO ‘' NVYSSVYAMOJ ‘00 XO8 'IWI0HLSYE Spl8
S3DIAYES HLTVIH
NOILYIHO3Y |eyol
0Zo/L 1 7730 dvSr03Y 0Z/0/1LL 2421828222
6dE W ‘NO ' STTIWN NOG ‘0016 X018 'O'd "LB.LY SHIAD0Y Z968
NOILY IO
AlLH3d0O¥d ®? SNOSH3d O1 NOILD3IL0Hd I8gjoL
0ZHO/LL 113D NYISSNOW 8 0Z/F0/1LL 1121928222
6dE DEIN ‘NO ‘ STTIN NOQ ‘0016 X08 "O'd ‘L21V SHID0YH z968
AlY3d0dd ® SNOS¥Ndd OL NOILD3IL1LO¥d
LNINLHEVHIA ONIQTING lelol
02O/ AJNAHTAS 113D SHIADOY 0Z/V0/ L1 1221828222
6d€ DEIN 'NO * ST NOQ ‘0016 X089 "O°d ‘L'BLY SHIADOU Te6e
LININLEVY43IA ONIaTING
LNIWNOMIANS [BjOL
0ZH0/ 1 TI39-3.0US TNHANYT 027071 L LL2182822T
6dt DS ‘NO * STIIW NOQ ‘0016 X08 "0'd ‘L'2LY SHIO0Y 2968
020/ LOVHINCD ONIMOADZY ATHLNOW 0Z/0/ 1L SLLLEL
$98 gid ‘NO * AVE HLIMON ‘LS3IM LI AMH 9Z61 "ONIMOADAY a9y or68
INIANOHIANST
ajeq ang uopduasag aeq JAGIINN33IOAL}

{roday reaosddy pounod)

uny anbays Areupwijeldd diy
uessemod jo Ajjedisiunpyy

wergiLl 0Z0T//EE



{8t'co6$)

AL

66'616'6¥$

86°29¢'cS

eouefeg Q1A

00°00¥$

00°00Z'L$

00°000'06%

00'000'9$
$ pajebipng

“20IAGIS-AHLINID

Xvd4 '8 INOHd31AL

O"dAH

S3Nddns

uoRduISag UNOISY

0LL95-58-01

05519-08-01

01919-08-01

00819-5.-01

Jagunp unosay

tL'oeo'zes :Aed o] s|g 1v)ol
£g'se$ SAMIALINID 18301
£5°523
£5°678 £5°62% 0Z/ro/LL QUHAAH-AYLIWID 02/¥0/LLOCLHE 180LFPZLZ00Z
€75 MSIN ‘NO * OLNONOL ‘¥ NLS ‘Z0L¥ X089 "O°d ‘SHHOMLIN 3INO ONAAH 6.8
CETRETENER
69°Lv1'08 X3NdS1¥O0dS €10
§5°G1Z%
56128 865123 0ZirorLL T30 ININ 02071 Lll1828¢¢2¢
6d€ Ot ‘NO ‘ STIIN NOQ ‘0016 X0g "0'd 'L'2LV SHID0N <968
0'ze6'ss
¥0'2E6'68 ¥02E6'GS 0ZivOrLL OHAAH 0Z/0/LLOZEL E4¥1 20921002
£7¢ MSIN ‘NO  OLNOYOL ‘¥ NLS ‘Z0LY X089 'O°d ‘SMHOMLIN INO QOHGAH 2648
XINdSLHOdS
161118 FYLNIO ALINNWINOD M3FHD LNOYL Iejol
£1'99%
€1°99% £1°'99% 02/v0/11 S31NddNs 02/40/LL OZLL 6E08BOEZ002
ZO0 dZ1 'aVv ‘AMVOTVD 'IN NLS 0£5Z X013 Od ‘ALTI3LYS LOFHIA MVHS SZ66
jwy peacsddy  Juy asioau|  ajeq ang uopduasaqg ayeq JAQUINNSNOALY

(uodey jeaosddy pounos)
uny anbayy Areunujaid d/v
uessemod jo Ayjedioiunpy WelEiLL 0Z0ZMILL



9

{co¥v0'28)  00'000'6%

¥’ lE63 00°005°Z$

85°£59'6% 00°000'52%

LGEZY'ES 00°'000'¢3$

L0°v92'5e$ 00°000°29%

L0'v92'5e$ 00'000°29%

(ro'gzee) 00°0%

80°09.% 00°000°9%

soueieg LA § pejebpng

[ afedq

SIASNILX3I IDNJJ0

® X4 ® INOHJ3T3AL

OYAAH

HOINIS %3340 1N0YL

SNOILYHIH0- 1430 FHid

SNOILYHIH0-"1d430 Feild

052@3-1INIO SSANLIA

ONISILAIAQY

uonduass(] jJunoaay

§6519-08-0L

085195201

0LoLg-52-01L

0£095-59-0L

020295101

02028-51-0L

45/19-0t-0L

050L9-0t-01

1aquInp JUNC3Y

veves'vs :Aed 0] siiig e1o0l
PLZTLS XI4S1HOdS [ejol
rLees
rLzeLd rLZeLe 0Z/90/1 L AL 21T LVS STISNIDXT 01440 02/80/LL  921210090028518
627 JEW ‘NO "MHOA HLYON ‘STIIW NOQ NOLLYLS "0SZ¢ X089 "'0'd ‘AL 1138 85.6
XIA1dS1H0dS
66'83Zt$ FULNID ALINNWINOD M33HD LNO¥L 18j0L
26'65%
76'65% Z6'65% 02/90/L L Xvd 2 INOHJITAL 02/90/L1  QZLI ZLESPTLISOL
2XZ OENW ‘NO ‘HHOA HLHON ‘0006 X08 Od 'VAVNVI 1138 6506
L0°602°LS
LO60T LS L0°60Z°LS 0Z/90/LL OHUAH 02/90/1 L OZL)L S9LZZEDLLOOT
£7€ MSIN 'NO * OLNOYOL v NLS ‘Z0L¥ X08 "O'd ‘SHHOMLIN INO ONAAH Z618
FHINID ALINNININOD MIAFND LNOUL
Loves 3¥NLIND 2 TVORIOLSIHH [ej0L
LO'P9%
TTWH JIHSAN3IHS
10 9% LO'vas 02/90/1 1 HOIN3S ¥3340 LNOYL THE INOHJ 02/90/LL  DZ)L 9095€Z2G02
LY JEIN ‘NO 'HYOA HLHON '0006 XO8 Od ‘'VAYNYD 1138 6506
FHENLIND B TVOIHOLSIH
157800°L$ ANINLAVLIA NI [ejo)
9¢°18%
9eies 9e’1L8% 0Z/90/11 INOHd TTVH 3id DL 02/90/1L  0ZL L £5TSETLSOL
£XZ JEN 'NO “HHOA HLYON ‘0006 X089 Od 'VAYNYD 1138 6506
51°2Z6%
514269 G1°L26% 0Z/E0/LL 1d3G 3did GI1SM 02/€0/L L 0202 1o
€AZ MSIW ‘NO ' OLNOYOL ‘v NOLLYLS ‘SLiv XO08 "0'd ‘a¥v08 IONVUNSNI T ALIIVS OV IdHNOM ov06
INIFNLHVL4Ia T4
69°0Zv°2$ LINIJWNIIAOD TVIINIO [ejoL
£8ZrIS
ZEVLLS ZEFLLE 02/90/L L FHINID SSINLIE - AL 1138 0Z/90/LL  £90EZ009002SSHE
69% DEW ‘NO 'MHOA HLHON ‘STIIN NOQ NOLLYLS “05Z€ X08 '0'd ‘Al 1138 856
£8°960°7$
9z'gsg’' 13 92'888°'L$ 0Z/90/L 1 Y3LLIT SM3IN TIvd 02/90/1L L £568
0Z1 HOd ‘NO ‘NYSSYMOd ‘28 X0OZ ‘ANVJIWNOD B AINN3d ___Vs€6
LINJNNHIAOD TVHINID
uny poaosddy  jwny eojoAu]  9jeQg oNng uonduosag ayeg JaquInNasIoAU|
JOPUBA

{iroday feaosddy paunon)
uny anbeysn Areunwuifeid Jd/v
uessemod jo Aediounyy woys:L  0202/9/L1



i

LL8518
Le1LLZ's$ 00°000'8$ 05Z®3YINID SSINLIJ LS219-21-0) S6°1E% 56°1ES 0ZreLL HIZILINYS ANVH 0221/ 1L LEBEY
LL20es 00°000'6$ WYHOOUd YYD 052 YSL19-C1-01 ¥6'9cS $5°9¢% 0greLiL HANYINO 022 L/LL VA YA 44
LLTOES 00°000'6% WYHOOHd-MYYTO 052 ¥6L19-Z21-01 66°LES 66°1ES [V TATAR 5 XO8 HSVYD C2FEL/LL o0Zry
ve'518'cs 00°000'P1S IVIHOLINVYC-MYYTD 0§52 525iezi-0l 66'52% 66'5Z$ 0ziEL/LL S3INOTD 02/ZLLL 290%
¥e's18'zs 00°000'FIS TYTHOLINYT-AEVY 1D 0S¢ GZ519Z1-01 16°F18 6rLS DErZLILL HIANVITDO OZ/CLiLE [ard=in 4
ra619'2$ 00°000'v1S IVIHOLINYM-HMAYT1D 082 625192101 Fi: WAL L8218 s rATAN RN 19A0WR)I MADIW OZ/ELILY PrSEY
0Z) Hod ‘NO ' NVSSYMOJd ‘8Pl X089 'O'd ‘SL¥Vd OLNY ¥ IHYAMAHVYH 3WOH NYSSYMOd 1268
29°Z6L°1S
60°082°/% 00°000'52% SALMLN-MEYIO 05¢ £6219-21-01 29°Z61'L$ 19261'1% ¢ TATAR IR MHVID 052 @ OMAAH 0Z/ZL/LLOZLL 2150012002
€72 MSI ‘NO ' OLNOYOL ‘¥ NLS ‘Z0L¥ X083 'O'd "SHHNOMLIN INO ONAAH C6i8
NHVY1D 05¢
£6°L£9°0L$ ININNYUIAOD TVHINID €10
26'86%
BZ'EL9'019 00°000'02% $31Nddns 301440 0r519-01-01 €1'68% £1°68% ¢ TATA N FOQIELHYD MNI 0Z/CL/L) 1-£6G89.)
LHI 891 ‘NO “TTIH ANOWHIR ‘LN32STHD M331 09 “TIvHLINID I21440 8916
8L’
z6'¢9Z'L$ 00°000'Z9% SH3LNdWOD 045190101 L 692'8% PL'69.'8% 0ereLiilL ONILTNSNOD H3LNANOD 02/2L/1 L ££0020C
MY Vid ‘NO ‘Avd HLYHON “S3HD IvHEHIA0TD ££1 ‘ONLLTINSNOD HALNdWOD DNV ANN3L 0216
9¥°09£$
(00" 15¢€%) 00°0% OSIN-'AZY Q3uHI43q S166€-01-01 9P'99ts 9'99¢cs 0ZCL/LL TYLNIH ION3d 022V L1 PLO-LZOLLLSLL
625 MSIN ‘NO ‘OLNOYOL ‘¥ NOLLYLS Tv1lSOd ‘925t X08 "O'd ‘889251 O/ ‘'VAVYNVYD 40 STVANIH A3LINN ¥Z06
2019478
(rLsor'szs)  {00°000'8S) ¥ STOUVYHD MNVE 099190101 00°62% 00'6.% 0Z/0L/LL 334 TYNNNY 93 - YSIA 02/70/1L 1L ZaM0ZLO0
(brsop'szg)  {00°000'8$) ¥ S3IOUVHD MNvE 0991L9-01-01 00°6.$ 00'6L$ 0Z/0L711 08 - 334 TYNNNY YSIA 0270711 £2002120
SdiTIHd
8Z'C19'0L$ 00°000'02% S3ANddNS 321440 0t51L9-01-01 66°L0L% 66°L0LS 0Z/SL/LL "S- ANTJWIAVYIHIE - AOVD3T AL SHIMOTS 02i00/L L ZIN0Z100
8Z'€19'0LS 00°000'02% $31TddNS 301440 0¥51LS-0101 66°6ES 66'6E% 0g/GL/LL Qlvd3y - TYNOSH3d 0TH0/LE FIHNOZLD0
8Z2'¢19'0L% 00°000'02% S3ITddNs 324440 ors18-01-01 06°9v% 06°9v$ 0Z/S1LL SdITIHG 'S - INIWIAYEHIS 02071 L PNI0Z2L00
8TEI9'0LS 00°000'0Z% S3ANddNS 321340 O¥GLo-0L-0L 05°99% 05°'99% 02/71L/11SdIMIHd S - INSWIAYIHAY TvHINNL - SINYT 02071 L EZW10Z100
ONIAIDSHNYHL
9z'c19'oLs 00°000'02$ $3MNddNs 301340 orS19-01L-01 128L% 1z81Ls 02/51L/1LL W04 NDIS - A4Y08 ¥31S0d - ¥al LNIJWITD 020711 EHM0ZLO0
NOIS ONIAIDSHNYHL
8Z°EL9'0LS 00°000'0Z$ S3Nddns 301440 0¥S19-04-0L gL'oLs gLoLs QT/SLILL - QYV09 Y31S0d - ADVINEVYHA NN31D 02/40/1) CHAMOZLO0
L1Z 9id ‘NO ‘ AvE HLUON ‘13341S NIV #0Z ‘VSIA MNVEVILODS G168
60°202'28
LUBLLLLS 00'000'SZ$ Vo3I 2 L1any 09%19-01-0¢ 2.°00t% 8270018 02y SHALIVYIN TYHINID 0Z2/2Y/tL  0Z2f1 1 ¥LO-¥0L-E2
(¢Z'292'€0L$) 00'000°0LES SANVYIVS 00S19-01-0% TTEPPLS ZTerr' LS (1TATAR L) TvO31 A3TYAYT GNY INIT HIMOL 02rZL/LL 650-P0L-€L
Er9 AL ‘NO YITUYO 851 X093 "INNIAY IVIMOWIW 05 ‘d71 ‘JLSHHD “1T13SSNA z.l68
28'ST0'LS
{20°'¥5PS) 00°000'9% OHaAH 01919-01-01 ¥LLLGS riLiss 022l MUY 062 @ OHAAH 0Z/ZH/ILOZLE ¥4 1150012002
£1€ MSIN ‘NO ' OLNOUYOL ‘v NLS 'Z0LY X08 "0'd "SHYOMLIN INO OHAAH 7618
INJFRNYIAOD TVHINIOD
aouejeg alA $ p=ebpng uoiduaseq unodoay JoquinN juno2oy  Juy paaciddy Juwy 8010AU| 8l ang uonduasag aEeq J3QUINN3JI0AU|
JOpuea

(Loday jeaasddy founod)
uny anbayn Aieunuifeid d//
1 abed uessemod jo Aedorunyy widpL:s 0Z02Z7Z4/4E



o

I¥'90£'928  00°000'59% -SMHOM 211and 090£9-0Z-0) oF' 13 or'1$ 0z/0L/LL 1S - 39vy0LS ANOIDI 02770/ 180zZ100
Md HO4d
19'902'928  00°000'59% -SMHOM 2118Nd 090£9-02-01 erara 0zTZELS 0Z/5L11L  SATdNS ONINYITD AIAOD - YIVHYTIOQ 0Z/70/1 1 £WI0ZL00
L1Z €)1d 'NO ' AVE HIYON ‘13THLS NIV $0Z ‘VSIA MNVEVILOOS 5168
FA %
66'8€.% 00°000°'c$ ALT4¥S-SHHOM DI1and 0/0£9-02-0¢ 1978 19°2¢€% 0Z/ZLiILL H3AZIN3Q03A 022111 Zesey
2°904'928 00000593 -S$MH0M 2Ngnd 090£9-02-01 L0'¥8 1098 0zTLiLL 3dOY HILHYIS 022 L1 L8zry
P'90L'928  00'000'59% “SXYOM 2118Nd 090£9-0Z-01 ZE61$ zZe'sle 0zZZLLL S3L 319V 0ZZLILL gg5Zyy
0°90L'928  00°000°'59$ -SMHOM 218Nd 050£9-02-01 Zr'szs FA R T4 0ZZLILL Sdvdl ISNOW 0Z/ZL/LL LOEEY
0Z! HOd ‘NO ‘' NVYSSYMOd ‘81 X08 '0'd ‘SLHVd OLNV B IHVYMAEVH SWOH NYSSYMOd Z68
9L'S6L 1S
PO'SYE'vS 00°000'5t$ OWAAH-ONILHOIN 13341S 020£9-0Z-01 al'ssl'1g 91°S61'LS 0ZZLiLL OYAAH-ONILHON L3TULS 0Z/ZH/LL 021} 15828299002
£1€ MSIN ‘NO * OLNOHOL ‘¥ NLS ‘TOLY X0 'O'd ‘SHHOMLIN INO OHAAH 6.8
SMIOM D118nd
¥1'680'28 INJNLHYdEd S¥1d 19300
856629
96'90¥'€l$  00'000'LZ$ SHMINYL- 1430 3HId 020295101 856623 85'662% oz/ZLiLL NOILOIJSNI TYNNNY 0Z/ZL/LY 2109
0X1 Y0d ‘NO ‘H3IAIN HINOS ‘028 XOH Od ‘PZL AMH #8Z a1 JHLNID FDIIANTS 'SOHE HLIZHIND 5866
$0°19%
BLEZF'EEE  00000'298  SNOILVH3HO-1d3a 3yid 0Z0zZo-5L-0L 50198 S0°19% 0zZrZLILL 13INYILNI G421 0ZZL/LL L aadt]
8"'S A ‘NO ‘AMNBANS ‘13IHLS HOUVYT 8Z1 ‘SNOLLNIOS LIINHILINI 1INYIA 0£06
15°¢29'1$
ot'£8.'6% 00°000'0Z8  INIWINDI Ld3A 3l 0P0ZIS1-0L 9L'PILYS OLPLYS 0ZISLIL ANINDINDI THId - ONOZYWY 0Z/0/11 ¥W80Z100
or'ces'68 00°000'02¢  LN3WJIND3I-Ld3Q 3did 0r0z9-51-0t ZZ'699% ZZ'699% ozsLILL 1NIWIND3I 3dId - NOZYWY 0ZH0/LL £NE0ZLD0
BL'EZP'EES 00000298 SNOLLYHILO- L43Q 314 02029-51-01 65°G1%) (66°GL%) 0Z/0L/LL AaNN=34 - NOZYWY 0Z/¥0/1 1 9NL0Z100
BL'EZP'SES 00000298 SNOILVHIALO-'1d3Q 3yid 02029-51-01 00'6Z8 00'528 02ZISL/L) 334 ONISN3OIN - YAYNYD LHOdSNYHL 0270711 SNG0Z100
BL'E2P'EES  00°000°29¢ SNOILYHILO-'1d3Q 3uld 02029-51-01 (Kt ] [R5 i Y 0Z/SL/LL ASHNOI HOL HONMT - DIA SHIHYL 0270111 ZWE0Z100
6L'£ZP'EEs 007000298  SNOILYHILO- 1430 3dId 0Z0Z9-G1-01 00013 000L% 0Z/SL/LL 334 ONILSAL - YAYNYD LHOJdSNYHL 0Z/40/1 1 Ng0Z100
6lL'gTr'ees 00°000'788  SNOILYY3IdO-1d3qQ 3did 02029-51-0L 95'2¢18 95° .18 0270/ L ANOYQ "OJ Avdl - AN LS349 0240711 2902100
6L'EZH'EE$  00°000'298 SNOILYHIALO- 1434 3di4 020Z9-51-01 ot'1s oF' LS 0Z/0LILL 08 - A9VHO0LS ANO1 0ZTHOILE Z0802100
££°505°'Z% 00°000'01$ 3DNVYNILNIVIN- Ld30 3414 010255101 58 L01% S8 2018 0zZ/0LILL SIDANMIHYYD HANOL - SATdVLS 0TP0rLE 0802100
21Z 9id ‘NO * AVE HLHEON ‘L3THLS NIVIN ¥0T ‘VSIA MNVEVILODS 5168
vLZVS
6L'EZF'EES 0000029  SNOILYYILO-1d3Qd JdId 020Z9-51-01 vLZrS LIRS 0ZELLL IVLANTY Y3LVIH HILYM TTVH FHII DL OZZL/LL  LSEVBTFISEPRSS
8 MSIN ‘NO “ OLNOYOL ‘3AYNYIdST SHL S2 ¥ NOILYLS 05+ X089 Od ‘IHLINID ONISSIAD0Hd LNIWAVD ‘LHOAW0D WOH IONVINIY ¥568
0zT'ZLe
o9p'£8.'6% 00°000'02% INIWAIND3-Ld30 3414 OP029-61-0t ek y [T ArA § 0zrZLLL AIN3OY313Q 0221711 0¥y
0Z) HOd ‘NO* NVSSYMOJ ‘8FL X08 'O'd ‘S1¥Vd OLNY B IUVMOUVH IWOH NYSSYMOd 1Z68
ININLHYCL3A IHId
vEL9LLS MAVID OS2 [e10l
96°822%
0L'v89% 00'000°0Z¢ ONIGTINS- YYD 05T 9192101 96822 96'822¢% o0zl SUIVdIY dWNd Ly3H Y3LYM 0Z/ZL/LL zzel
0¥ HOd ‘NO 139402 ‘Av0d F1AY 01} ‘SIDIANIS TVIIHLIZII IONTHMYT £ezol
00°081%
2L20ES 00°000'6$ AYHOOHd- YYD 052 ¥5L19-21-01 00'081% 000818 ozZoLILL HNOL NIDWNG - $AY MOO0G30Vd 0Z/40/11 HM0ZLD0
21Z 9id ‘NO * A¥S HLIMON ‘133418 NIVIN #0Z ‘VSIA YNVEVILO2S 5168
aoueieg QLA ¢ parebpng uonduosaq Junoasy JaquinN Junodoy  juwy paaocsddy jwy 8d10Au)]  83eQ @nQ uondussaq ajeq JaquinNad1oAU]

uny anbayn Aeunuield d/y
ueSSEMOd Jo Ajjedisiunpy wdpp6 0ZOZRL/LE



YMOO-543IM3s

“3SNOHdWNG Y31vM

YAMOO-H3LYM

-3SNOHdWNG H31vm

-34S TIFANYT

¥ 300149 LSNOD

“SMHOM 21N18Nd

“SMHOM D1and

“NMOLNMOQ
-SHH0OM 2INand
uoniduosaq UNooaY

souejeg QLA JaquInp JuUNo3dYy

00°'vSE's$ H3M3S B0l
00°v5E'S$

00'¥5£'6$ 00'¥SE'SS 0ZrZLILL NOOSYT LMM 0ZZL/LL 2985
LOF VS ‘NO 'VONVSSISSIN ‘005 ALINS LS CIMVLINONNH S80Z ' ‘AONIOY HALVAM NYI1D ORIVINOD 2068
HIAM3S
6£°8z9'6$ d31VM JeloL
12928
(B -T1; 1£9.8 0ZrZLILL 1SA-3SNOHdNNG Y3 LVYM 0Z/ZL/LL b ad
8rs 3¢d ‘NO ‘AYNFANS ‘13THLS HOHYT 821 ‘SNOILATOS 13INHILNI LINVIA 006
00°8Z+'es
00'82r'9s 00'ger'ss 0ZRZLILL IDIAYTS WILVM 0Z/ZL/LL 2885
LOF ¥ST1 ‘NO ‘YONVSSISSIW ‘005 3LINS  "LS OIHYINOHNH §30Z * ‘ADNIOV HILVYM NVI 1D OIMVLNO 2068
80°FZL 1S
0¥ZL 13 80¥ZL1LS 0Z/ZL/LL OHAAH SANAdNS/LYIN-ISNOHWNG H3LYM 02724116211 BL0S52E00002
€712 MSI ‘NO ' OLNOXOL "V NLS ‘Z0L¥ X0 "O'd "SMHOMLIN INO O¥AAH z618
H31YM
vZTHr'TS JININNOAHIANST 1€j0L
AT 4 dra)
¥Zerr'zs vz erb'zs 0ZrZLiLL Bupoeduwos ebeqieb ozzLrLL LE25
0Z1L HOd ‘NO ‘' NVYSSYMOd TES AVMHOIH 811 ‘ONILYAYDXE STHONH NYAT 1518
LNIANNONYIANT
E8°CYS'Z$ SMUOM 2179Nnd 12101
58'559$
c8'5£08 6g'Scos 02/2Liil AVM 3341 3NId 062 1HIATND 3DvdIH 027217114 el
0TZHOd 'NO*  MIIHD LNOUL 001 XOH ‘NOILINHLSNOD AVENOY'S'M T206
00°0%
00°0% 00°'0% 0ZrRM L JOIAYIS 1INHIALNI A 0Z/ZLiLL L aad]
8rs 3£d ‘NO ‘AHNBANS ‘LIFULS HOHUVT 821 ‘SNOILNTOS 1ANHILNI LANVIA 0£06
6E'LLES
6EL1ES 6EL1ES 0zZiZLLL TYLNIY H3IMOL 0Z/ZLiLL 5809611
SWF Vid ‘NO ' AVS HLHON ‘avOd TVIHNIdII 221 ‘L1 dNOND WOOS1AL WNYLOTdS z868
10°0Ze$
31SYM
95°0¥1% 95'0v18 0zZwL/LL 00 YO SOVE - SNOLLNTOS ILSYMDOA 0240711 W02 100
6L6¥8 61678 02ISHILL LNYNNIL “1- SH3IMOT4 MOd 02/#0/L L 21502120
Jwy paaocsddy jJwy asioauy  ajeq ang uopduasag aeq JaquINiasloAu|
{(Hoday jeaosddy yrauno))

uny enbayn Areunugeid d/v
uesSEMOd jo Ajjedisiunipy wdpL:6 0Z0ZZ4/44



0Z'6¥L'S1S

9t 0IL¥S

9z L2v'sS

pe'asg'oLs

Zy'866'9%

62°620' L%
Zr'866'98

96°65'c$
96°6L6'eS
£L615'6S

aoueleg QLA

00°000°22%

00'000°SL$

00°000'G1$

00°000°5e$

00°000°0tE

00°000'8L%
00°000'018

00°000'5%$
00°000°5%
00°000'8$

$ poyebpng

FONVYNILNIVIN

2 ONINNYId

ONINNY1d

NOIS3T NYSSYMOd

SANddNS/LYIN-SHYVA

B IVIH3LYW-T100d
SAMAINS/LYW-SHEYd

QLS dO"d/MYIAZI0ED
QL8 dOYd/MYIAS/08D
“HOLO3d4SNI ONIgINg

uonpdussag WuNodsy

028195401

010880401

S0089-04-01

089.9-59-01

010£8-65-01

OLLL9rSG-01
01049550}

S1L29 501
§1229-5t-01L
01229-5%01

JBQUWNN JUNO2DY

95°LLILS
s S WNAR 95'.L1$ 0ZreL/LL HIASN3SIA 0Z2L/LE 9069
ov¥ gid ‘NO ' Avd HLHON ‘Z1 LINN ‘3AINA SIN3S 191 ‘S31ddNS TVIMOLINVF A2 4 8Z.8
JHLIN3O ALINNNINOD M33HD LNOHWL
££°085"1$ ININJOTIAIA ? DONINNVI €301
15°28%
16488 16°28% [ T ATA RN HDdVY3SANS 0Z/TL/L L GeEST
EXZ VId ‘NO ‘ANNOS ANV '¥ZZ XOF "ONI $31LIL NVINAY 95¥6
zTEr'LS
ZeeryLe AR 4 AR 0zl 03T VAV ANV INIT HIAMOL 0Z/ZL/LL 650-+0L-€2
£rg AE1'NO VITII™O ‘851 X08 ‘INNSAV TVRIONIW 05 'dT11 '3LLSIIHD "113ssny 2168
1ININJOTIAIA ? ONINNV1d
2518 FANLTIND 2 TVIHOLSIH 1BjoL
1T
1Z5I¥e TAE [irArATY) ASNIdX3 NOIDTT NYSSYMOd 0Z/ZL/LLE0ZL) +HSLPEr02002
£71€ MSIN 'NO ' OLNOHOL ‘¥ NALS ‘Z0L¥ X019 “0O'd "‘SHMHOMLIN INO O¥AAH Z6.L8
F4N1LTND 2 TVIRIOLSIH
8L'60.L$ NOILVINIAY [Bjo)
ZTLEYSS
ZL'EPSS clL'erss 0Z/51iL) SHAVd HOd SOV - A3 LININN SOVd 0Z/40/1L 1 TWO0ZLO0O
L1Z €1d ‘NO * A¥S HLHON ‘13341S NIVIN P0Z ‘VSIA MNVAVILOOS 568
99991
FAR: 1+ L1'ers 0ZZLiLL OYAAH S31NddNS ? IVIHILYW-100d 0Z/2L/L LOZL L ¥881¥6.80002
6vgLLs 678LL$ 0Zr2LiL) OHAAH S3NddNS/LYW-SAYY 0Z/ZL1L L 0Z) ) £280L¥L6000T
£1€ MSW ‘NO ‘ OLNONOL ‘V NLS ‘T0L¥ X082 'O'd ‘SNHOMLIN INC QHAAH 2618
NOILY3IYO3Y
96°LLLS ANINLEV43IA ONIQTING B30l
96°LLL$
oIS Sv'LS 0TSLILL WA - 3OYHOLS aNOTDI 024071 L EWW0Z100
00'9L1L$ 009LIS 0Z/5LILL 334 IYNNNY 08D - HYININ 0Z2/0/L L ZWINCZLO0
05°09% 05°09% 0Z/5LILL 73N4 - SNV TAYD 0Ti0/LL WW0Z9200
212 Ald ‘NO * AvE HLYON ‘13341S NIYIN #0Z 'VSIA ¥NVEVILO0DS 5168
ININLHVYHIA ONIaTING
Jwy panosddy iy as10Au}  31eQ eng uopduasaqg ayeq 13qUINN33I0AU]

(Lrodey reaosddy 1ounon)
uny anbayy Areunuioid d/y
uessemod Jo Ayediojunyy wdyL§ 0Z02/24/L4



I

(og'888°C13)
{g9g'g88'c1$)
{9g°g88°'cL$)

(98°888'C1$)
96'82¢€'LS
(92°21v2'28)
(92°Lvz'28)

TL18E'LS

L' 062" LGS
L'06Z' 15
LP'06Z' 1SS
L' 062°15$
L' 062'16$
L'062'15%
L' 082" 158
L¥'062° LSS

ZzLoz'ss

56°/86'€YS

0Z6rL'G1S

99'678%

0Z'6¥L'S51%
02'6¥L'GLS
0Z'6¥L'GLS
0Z'6¥2'51%
0Z'6PL'SLS
0Z'6¥L'SL$
0Z6¥L'G1$
0Z'6PL'61S

aoueleg alA § pajabpng

0003
00°C$
00°0%

00°0%

00°000't$
00°000°6$
00°000'6$

00°000'01$

00°000°09%
00°000'09%
00°000°09%
00°000'09%
00°000°09%
00°000'09%
00°000'09%
00°000°09%

00°000'8$

00°000'06%

00'000'£2%

0000528

00°000°22%
00°000'22$
00°000'22$
00°000'228
00°000'22$
00°000'22%
00°000'22%
00°000'22%

S3SN3dX3 61 AINOD
SIASN3IX32 61 AINOD
S3SN3dX3 61 AINOD

S3SN3dX3 61 AINOD

S3NddNS -LN3NdIND3

SISNIIX3 IO
S3SN3dX3 301440

$3NddNS ONIAING

15619-08-01
15619-08-01
15619-08-01

15619-08-01
S¥619-08-01
G65L9-08-01
S5519-08-01

09619-08-01

90'0€L$
96°ZrTs
006118

65°2¥E3
290918
00'GL8
66'5%

6L°67%
62'6¥%

YILIWOWHIHL
90'0¢€1$ 0c/0LiLy AQO8 GALNNOW 1YM - NOZYINY 02/0/1 L EHWOZED0
96'ZTres 0zZ/oL/LL 13D ONIZILINYS ONVH - NOZVINY 02/P0/L L CHWOZLO0
00611$ 0z/SL/LL H39904 S5310H0I - LO43A IWOH 02/r0rt) FLHWOZLD0
S3diM DNILDIANISIO
65°LPES 0giro/LL = YAYNYD TWIELSNAONI Tvd01O 020/ 1L HW0ZL20
290918 0Z/v0rLL AOHINI HAdIdANYS 02/#0/1 | MI0ZLI0
00'6.$ 0ZoL/LL HW - 334 TYNNNY YSIA 02/470/11 LHWOZ120
66°G$ 0C/oL/LE 3DQI™YLYVYD - NI LNVLSNI dH 02/#0/L1L ELHWOZLO0
L1Z 8id 'NO * A¥E HIMON ‘L3J4LS NIVIN F0Z 'VSIA MNVEVILODS 5163
6L6¥% 0zZZLiLL SANAdNS ONIQUNG 0Z/21/LL 9L0ELEPILOEI9S

8r¥ MW ‘NO ‘ OLNCHOL ‘JaYNY1d$S3 FHL SZ ¥ NOILYLS P0S¥ X08 Od ‘TJHLNID ONISSII0Hd LNIWAYC ‘LHOINOI IWOH DNV ¥568

? SHIvd3d ONIa1ng
8 SHIVd3Y ONIQING
g SHivd3d ONIQIING
'3 SHIVd3d oNIgIing
8 SuIvd3d ONIgIINg
8 SHIVd3H ONIGTING
3 SHlvdId ONITTING
'8 Sulvd3d ONIgINg

? SUIVdId-INOHWYZ

QuAAH

SONYNILNIVIN

8 Xvd '® INOHJ3T3L

FONVNILNIVW
SONYNILNIVIA
JONYNILNIYA
JONVNILNIVIV
JONVYNILNIVIA
JONVYNILNIVIV
JONVYNILNIVIA
FONYNIINIVW

uonduasag Jjunosoy

05615-08-0F
05615-08-0L
06619-08-01
06619-08-0L
05619-08-0L
05619-08-01
05619-08-01
05619-08-0L

0€61908-01

01919-08-01

028195401

0SS19-5.01

02819-5.-01
02819-5.-0L
02819-6.-0L
0z8le-5L-0t
02¢819-6.-01
02818-54-01
02819-6.-01
028195401

Jaquinp Juneaay

10°01Z%

26'82%
(oo°z$)
66 v6S
££'028
LE'vS

86'€eS
e TARCT RS
LA 4L

09518
0L951%
£0°55%
£0'55%

L1'9ZE'LS
8Z'€29%
82°¢29%

or1es
o188

E6ErYS

¥6'801%
6L 1LY
(6¥'c$)
55°Z¢$
L7668
6L LIS
69°15%
65523

Jwy parosddy  juny 3a%10AU|  3leQ AN

26'92% 0greL/LL ddvl 022/l SO6EY
(00°2$) oerEL/LL NdNL3A 0272411 ogicy
66 769 0TrELLL ALIGHHYHS HOLIIANNOD 02721711 SLICY
£e'0cs DerELiLL S3AHAL1lvd 027211 LEOEY
(K 4 0erZLiLL S17104 0221 66GEY
26'CES 02ZLILL SAVDIINM 022/ L 8LSEY
52'61% 0greLiLL 3dvl 02211 00SEY
vZ'vis 0ereLiLL SAISTHAY 022/t FA%) 4% 4
021 HOd ‘NO ' NVSSYMOd ‘8Pt X08 '0°d 'SLuVd OLNY 2 IHVMAEYH IWOH NYSSYMOd 1268
0.'961$ 02/ZLiLL 771439 ANYHOHd 022111 691856
+Z8 9ld ‘NO ' Ava HLYON ‘LS NOSS8IO 98 ‘A3LININ INVJOYd JYOONW 7988
£0'66% 02ieLiLL QYAAH 0Z/ZL/LLOZL L SPEEFPL60002
£7€ MSI ‘NO * OLNQYOL ‘¥ NLS ‘TOLY X083 "0O°d ‘SHHOMLIN INO OHAAH 2618

X31dS190dS

FUINID ALINNWWOD Y339 LNO¥L [e1ol
8C'€eos ocreLiLL dn LYvY1S TYNOSVY3S 0C/eLiLE BRGLELIEY
Z9Z 381 ‘NO Y921 £su0)§ ‘py uaaus) 8Z¢ ‘AL ATYNOAIIN '8 XOVIS eriol
or'18% 0greLiLL L13INHILNI DJ0L 0272111 224"
85 38d ‘NO 'AdNAANS 'LI3341S HOHVY 821 ‘SNOLLNTOS 1INYALNI LANVIA 0£06
¥6'801% [1TArANIN SUSYIN J311d 0272V /L1 LLIEY
6L LLS Qe LL 3d0Y 02/ciitl [=]5°1% 4
Bres) [1TArA NN L19 THA A3aINENL3IY 02/2i/LL OLSEY
652 [irATANIN N SS9 17a 0221l BOSEY
LV661% 0ZrZLiLL 17¥S ANV SMIHOS DV1 02211 L 905eYy
6L°21% [irArA RN 1NIvd 0272l BOVEY
68°16% [/ FArARIRN LNIvd 0Z/2LiLL B6ZEP
65523 02r2LiLE $1708 Ov1 02211 £6ZLY
0Z1 HOod ‘NO © NVSSVYMOd ‘8¥L X08 "0O'd ‘'S1dvd OLNV ® IHVAMIYYH IWOH NYSSYAMOd 1268
uonduosag a1eq J3qUINNa2I0ALY

{roday jeaosddy pounos)
uny sanbayn Llieujwijaid d/y

uessemod jo Aediouniy

wdpL:6 0Z0Z/ZL/LL



“i

7e'ev 053 :Ked o] s|iig |1e10L
09'3£8'$ X31dSLHOdS 18301
LLIEPLES
L 062'1LSS 00'000'09% 2 SHIVJ3d ONIdTING 05619-08-01 L5 151$ 19'LG1LS 0ZZHLL INTYATIIA 3DV1d3H 022LiLL 6£261
L'062 158 00°000'09% ? SUIVd3Y ONIgTINg 056150801 1e°808'2% ££'808'7% 02/CLiLL dN LYVLS H3N08 0ZZL/LL SGL161
L 062'L5$ 00°000'09% 2 SYIVd3d ONIaTINng 0S619-08-01 21'e818 LI'EBLS 0ZreLsLL S3ATVA 440 LNHS 0ZZL/LE 04161
021 HOd "NO ‘NVSSVYMOd ‘'SPl X08 "0°d ‘LS NIVIN 99% ‘INI TVIIILIT T 2 ONILYIH S.NOAdnd £596
06'9)12'2$
S0'90P'cLS 00°000'0Z$ uva X31dS140dS 28619-08-0t 06'6£Z$ 06'6£2% 0Z/i0L/LL 338 - AHIMI LB VIONSNIN O2/¥0/LE 0LHNOZLOO
(og'2R8'tLs) 000% S3ASNIJX3 61 AINOD 15619-08-01 896°68% 96'68% QZ/0kILL HIODHVYHO ANV AY3LLYd - L0430 INOH 02/70/1 1 SHINDZLD0
(ogg82'cly) 000% SIASNILX3 6L AINOD 19619-08-01 LLIETS LL1E2S 02OL/LL SHSVIN 3OV - NOZYINY 0Z/70/1 ) SHWOZ1D0
(9g'988'c1$) 000% SIASNILX3 61 AINDD 15618-08-0) L0vivs FLindR Q20LILL HANYITD LINVLOIINISIA - LOdS NY31D 02/#0/L1L SHWOZLO0
(og'g8g'ely) 0008 S3SN3IdX3 64 AINDD 1S619-08-01 966513 96'651% 0Z/i0L/LL SIAOTD TANIA - NOZYWY 02/70/1 L FHINOZLD0O
souejeg LA $ payebpng uondussaqg unosoy JOQUINN JUNC22Y  Jwy paacuddy Juny a010AU] 93 anQ uondusssg aeg JaqUINN3IoAU|

JOpUaA

{rroday jeaosddy jisunog)
uny anbayn Aeujwitjeid 4/
uessemod jo Ajredrarunpy wdpL:6 0Z0Z/ZL/LE



